
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Pensions Sub-Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 17 March 2015 
7.00 pm 

COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - HAMMERSMITH TOWN HALL 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration: Opposition 

Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor PJ Murphy 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Michael Adam 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ibrahim Ibrahim 

Assistant Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2075 
 E-mail: ibrahim.ibrahim@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

15 June 2015 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Pensions Sub-Committee 
Agenda 

 
17 March 2015 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 7 

 (a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the minutes 
of the meeting held on 20 January 2015. 
 
(b) To note the outstanding actions. 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4. PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE PACK  8 - 48 

 This report presents the first Pension Fund quarterly update. 
 

 

5. PENSION FUND ACTUARIAL SERVICE  49 - 61 

 The Fund Actuary, Graeme Muir of Barnett Waddingham, is attending 
the Sub-Committee to brief Members on his role and some of the key 
issues affecting the funding of the Pension Fund. 
 

 

6. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES  62 - 82 

 This report presents a draft Statement of Investment Principles and 
recommends an increase in certain limits on investment. 
 

 

7. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   

 Thursday 14th May 2015.  



8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS   

 The Committee is invited to resolve, under Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, that the public and press be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of the following items of business, on 
the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of exempt information, 
as defined in of Schedule 12A of the said Act, and that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 

9. MINUTES  83 - 86 

 To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the minutes of 
the exempt discussion at the meeting held on 20 January 2015. 
 

 

10. STANDARD LIFE LONG LEASE PROPERTY FUND  87 - 132 

 To receive a report on the Standard Life Long Lease Property Fund.  
 

 

11. INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE  133 - 137 

 To receive an update on the Investment Strategy. 
 

 

12. INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS  138 - 155 

 To receive a report on the Infrastructure Investments.   
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Pensions Sub-

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Tuesday 20 January 2015 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Michael Adam, Nicholas Botterill, Iain Cassidy 
(Chair), PJ Murphy and Guy Vincent. 
 
Officers: David Coates (Interim Payroll Manager), Jonathan Hunt (Tri-Borough 
Director for Pensions & Treasury) , Ibrahim Ibrahim (Assistant Committee 
Coordinator), Debbie Morris (Bi-Borough Director for HR), Poonam Patel 
(Committee Coordinator) and Nicola Webb (Pension Fund Officer). 
 
External: Kevin Humpherson (Deloitte) and Alistair Sutherland (Deloitte). 

 
1. CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF SUB-COMMITTEE  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that Councillor Iain Cassidy was appointed the 
Chair and Councillor Michael Adam Vice-Chair of the Pensions Sub-
Committee at the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee on 2 December 
2014. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
THAT the report be noted. 
 

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE PENSIONS SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
Jonathan Hunt (Tri-Borough Director for Pensions & Treasury) explained that 
the Terms of Reference were presented and agreed at the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee on 2 December 2014.  
 
The Terms of Reference does not change the remit of Pensions involvement 
with Committee Members as it set out written responsibilities, which were not 
explicit before.  
 
Jonathan Hunt explained that the Pensions Sub-Committee would be 
responsible for all Pension matters that the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee previously dealt with although the Pensions Sub-Committee would 
report back to the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee once a year.  
 
RESOLVED –  

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
THAT the report be noted. 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillors Michael Adam and 
Guy Vincent.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. BI-BOROUGH LGPS PENSION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FROM 1ST 
APRIL 2015  
 
Debbie Morris (Bi-Borough Director of HR) introduced the report, which was 
approved by Cabinet on 1 December 2014. The report agreed to terminate 
the Council’s current contract with Capita and to appoint Surrey County 
Council (SCC) as the Local Government Pension Administration Service 
provider. Debbie Morris provided Sub-Committee Members a detailed version 
of events.  
 
On 1 October 2011 the Local Government Pension Scheme Administration 
Service for H&F was outsourced to Capita via a four-year framework 
agreement. It was noted that the Council went through a full procurement 
process where six providers were shortlisted. During the procurement 
process, only two providers were deemed suitable; which were the Council’s 
current provider, London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) and Capita.  
 
Sub-Committee Members were concerned that other organisations such as 
SCC and the London Borough of Wandsworth did not take part in the 
procurement process but David Coates (Interim Payroll Manager) explained 
that they were not pitching for business at that time and those organisations 
that did express an interest such as LPFA and Capita were considered as 
major providers in the market. 
 
The tender appraisal panel included officers from the Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea (RBK&C), Westminster City Council (WCC) and the 
London Borough of Hillingdon. Officers went through a rigorous process and 
the tender appraisal panel evaluated the quality of tenders using a weighted 
model where quality accounted for 50 per cent of the overall evaluation 
process and price the remaining 50 per cent.  
 
Capita successfully secured the contract and during their first year, their 
performance was satisfactory as whilst there were some teething issues, it 
was felt that these were expected in any new contract. In response, David 
Coates confirmed that the Council saved £130,000 per year from moving to 
Capita from LPFA.  
 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Debbie Morris and David Coates explained that approximately two years ago, 
they noticed a significant decline in Capita’s Key Performance Indicators 
(KPI), and monthly meetings were then established. Capita’s poor 
performance was attributed to the lack of IT enhancements to their systems 
and the Council had served the maximum penalties on Capita and since June 
2014, the Council were only paying 50 per cent of the monthly value of the 
contract.  
 
Debbie Morris explained that she had met with beneficiaries where their 
Pension  was calculated incorrectly. In addition, Sub-Committee Members 
were advised that there was a Pensions Client Team based at RBK&C who 
were able to check the accuracy of figures, as they had access to Capita’s IT 
systems.  
 
Sub-Committee Members requested assurance that there would be no other 
underpayments or overpayments. David Coates explained that every year in 
April, there had been a pensions uplift, the last of which was in April 2014. 
Since April 2014, the client team had checked any new pensions that had 
come online. 
 
SCC were approved as the Council’s new provider of pension administration 
services and payroll services for H&F and RBK&C from 1 April 2015. Sub-
Committee Members were keen to understand what percentage of their 
business the Council would represent. David Coates explained that SCC had 
90,000 beneficiaries, of whom 20,000 were from H&F and 15,000 from 
RBK&C. 
 
Sub-Committee Members requested the names of the organisations currently 
using SCC as their pension administration provider. Debbie Morris noted that 
their customers included WCC and several district Councils, which would be 
forwarded to Sub-Committee Members.   
 

ACTION: Debbie Morris 
 
Sub-Committee Members were concerned about the distress caused to 
beneficiaries. Debbie Morris explained that where beneficiaries had been 
short-changed, personal apology letters had been sent. In some 
circumstances small compensation had been offered by Capita were 
mistakes were made. In response, David Coates explained that SCC had a 
project framework plan in place, where they would be writing to beneficiaries 
once all details about the transfer had been confirmed.  
 
RESOLVED – 
 
THAT the report be noted. 
 

6. BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS AROUND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
A PENSIONS BOARD  
 
Jonathan Hunt referred Sub-Committee Members to page 16; Appendix 1 of 
the report, which set out the proposed terms of reference. The Sub-

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Committee noted that the Pensions Board would have no powers to overturn 
or make decisions and there would be no monetary allowances. In addition, 
Pension Board Members would receive papers from officers detailing the 
performance of the Pensions Sub-Committee for noting only. 
 
Jonathan Hunt noted that there was nothing within the legislation about 
whether  Pension Board Members were allowed to attend closed and exempt 
Sub-Committee Meetings. Further guidance would be sought from 
Governance and Scrutiny, Committee Services. 

 
ACTION: Committee Services 

 
Sub-Committee Members considered that it would be appropriate for Pension 
Board Members to attend future Pensions Sub-Committee meetings to be 
able to effectively scrutinise as set out in the proposed terms of reference.  
 
Sub-Committee Members queried the value of having a Pensions Board 
where Nicola Webb (Tri-Borough Pension Fund Officer) explained that the 
Pensions Board would have the ability to report to Full Council on its 
activities. 
 
Jonathan Hunt explained that there was a requirement for an equal number of 
employee and employer representatives and it was agreed that there would 
be no automatic right for anyone to join the board. The process for selecting 
members of the Pension Board would be set out in a separate document 
‘selection of pension board members’ in time for the Full Council Meeting on 
25 February 2015. 
 

ACTION: Jonathan Hunt 
 
Sub-Committee Members welcomed the report and noted the potential 
benefits of working on a tri-borough basis with a common approach. Jonathan 
Hunt noted that the draft terms of reference were similar to what had been 
agreed by WCC and RBK&C. However, it was unlikely that the regulator 
would permit a single Pension Board across all three funds, as the individual 
funds were not closely aligned enough to allow that to happen.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
THAT the report be noted. 
 

7. PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION AND GOVERNANCE  
 
Jonathan Hunt drew Sub-Committee Members attention to the following 
sections of the report. 
 
Section 5.5 – 5.8, page 22: Risk Register 
The risk register, which was further illustrated on appendix 2, page 27 – 35, 
represented good practice and information for Sub-Committee Members. Due 
to the level of finances involved, it was considered best practice for the 
Pension Fund to maintain a risk register to ensure that the risks the Fund 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

faces are properly understood and where appropriate, action was taken to 
mitigate them.  
 
Debbie Morris noted that the mitigating actions and risk ratings on pages 34 
and 35 of the report would be completed. 
 

ACTION: Debbie Morris 
 

Section 5.9 – 5.12, page 22: Class Actions 
 
Jonathan Hunt explained that where it was believed that director/s of a 
company had acted fraudulently or negligently, shareholders that invested in 
the company might have case to sue to try to get some money back via a 
Class Action. 
 
The Pensions Fund uses Northern Trust to file claims on the Funds behalf on 
a retrospective basis rather than a proactive basis. It was noted that the Fund 
was missing out on any actions brought in countries outside of North America, 
where Class Actions had originated.  
 
WCC and RBK&C utilise companies that look across the world where claims 
could be filed and it was noted that the cost of the contract was estimated at 
£3-5,000 per year plus 10 per cent of any claim. It was noted that WCC and 
RBKC had recovered £120,000 from Class Actions. 
 
Sub-Committee Members agreed that Fund officers should pursue Class 
Actions where possible. 
 
Section 5.13 – 5.15, page 23: Tax Recovery 
 
Jonathan Hunt reminded members that some countries were withholding 
taxes and in the case of Switzerland, this had increased significantly.  
 
Many of the counties who pay tax reclaims had convoluted processes, which 
led to it taking many months and in some cases years for reclaims to be paid. 
Jonathan Hunt noted that this was an ongoing process and was being 
monitored accordingly. 
 
Appendix 1, page 26: Draft Scorecard for Quarterly Update Pack 
 
Sub-Committee Members asked whether any benchmark data was available 
which would allow Members to determine how well the Fund was performing 
compared to other Funds. 
 
Jonathan Hunt agreed to report back with his findings. 
 

ACTION: Jonathan Hunt 
 
RESOLVED – 
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

THAT the sub-committee delegate the procurement of a firm to manage class 
actions on behalf of the Pension Fund to officers. 
 

8. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the next meeting of the Pensions Sub-
Committee would take place on 17 March 2015.  
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
The Chair requested for any members of the public and press to leave the 
meeting room, as all the public reports had been heard and the Committee 
were then moving onto exempt items. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
THAT under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the 
following items of business, on the grounds that they contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information, as defined by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
of the said Act and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

10. INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW  
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(a) THAT the Sub-Committee approve the recommendations in the report. 
 

11. APPOINTMENT OF FUND MANAGERS  
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(a) THAT the Sub-Committee approve the recommendations in the report.  
 

(b) THAT the Sub-Committee approve the recommendations in the report.  
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7pm 
Meeting ended: 9:15pm 

 
Chair   

 
 

Contact officer: Ibrahim Ibrahim 
Assistant Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2075 
 E-mail: ibrahim.ibrahim@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 6



Pensions Sub-Committee – Action Tracker 2014/15 

1 

 

 

Meeting Item and Minute number Action 
 

Lead Completion  
Status 

20 January 
2015 

Bi-Borough LGPS Pension 
Administration Services  
from 1st April 2015 (5) 

Sub-Committee Members requested the names of the other 
organisations currently using Surrey County Council as their 
pensions administration provider. 

Debbie Morris  

20 January 
2015 

Background and Proposals 
around the Establishment 
of a Pensions Board (6) 

Committee Services to confirm access to information available 
to Pension Board Members. 

Committee 
Services 

 

20 January 
2015 

Background and Proposals 
around the Establishment 
of a Pensions Board (6) 

Jonathan Hunt to confirm the number of employer and 
employee representatives for Full Council on 25 February 
2015. 

Jonathan Hunt  

20 January 
2015 

Pension Fund 
Administration and 
Governance – Risk 
Register (7) 

Complete mitigating actions and risk ratings. Debbie Morris  

20 January 
2015 

Pension Fund 
Administration and 
Governance – Draft 
Scorecard (7) 
 

Sub-Committee Members requested benchmark data to 
determine how well the Fund was performing compared to 
other funds. 

Jonathan Hunt  

20 January 
2015 

Investment Strategy 
Review (10) 
 

Sub-Committee Members requested a briefing from Standard 
Life at the next Pensions Sub-Committee on 17 March 2015. 

Jonathan Hunt  

 

P
a
g
e
 7



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

PENSIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

17th March 2015 
 

PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE PACK  
 

Report of the Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Decision  
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Report Author: Nicola Webb, Pension Fund Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 7641 4331 
E-mail: nwebb 
@westminster.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report is the first Pension Fund quarterly update pack in the format 
agreed at the last sub-committee in January 2015.  The scorecard in 
Appendix 1 provides a high level view of key pensions issues with more 
detail provided in the remaining appendices. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the sub-committee approve the withdrawal of the balance remaining in 
the Legal and General Investment Management Sterling Liquidity Fund and 
that it is transferred to the Pension Fund current account. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. The cashflow forecast in Appendix 4 shows that the Pension Fund current 
account is forecast to be overdrawn by the end of March 2015 unless there 
is an injection of cash before then. 
 

3.2. Following the funding of the M&G investment, the balance remaining in the 
Legal and General Investment Management Sterling Liquidity Fund will be 
approximately £3.35m.    

Agenda Item 4

Page 8



4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. At the first meeting of the Pensions sub-committee in January 2015, a 
proposal for a Pension Fund Quarterly Update Pack was agreed.  This 
report and associated appendices make up the first of these packs.  It is 
designed to provide sub-committee members with a high level view of key 
pensions issues in the scorecard (see Appendix 1) with more detailed 
information in the remaining appendices. 
 

 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1. Appendix 2 provides information about the Fund’s investments and 
performance.  Alistair Sutherland from Deloitte will be attending the meeting 
to present this report. 
 

5.2. Appendix 3 is the funding level update at 31st December 2014 prepared by 
the Fund Actuary.  Graeme Muir from Barnett Waddingham will be 
attending the meeting to answer any questions about funding and actuarial 
matters the sub-committee have. 

 
5.3. The actual cashflow for the period October to December 2014 and the 

forecast up to September 2015 is shown in Appendix 4.  An analysis of the 
differences between the actuals and the forecast for the quarter is also 
shown.  The forecast shows that an overdraft position is likely by the end of 
March 2015 without any action and so it is recommended that the remaining 
balance of approximately £3.35m in the Legal and General Sterling Liquidity 
Fund is transferred to the current account. 

 
5.4. The risk register has been reviewed by officers and is attached as Appendix 

5 for information.  A summary of the voting undertaken by the investment 
managers running segregated equity portfolios forms Appendix 6. 

 
5.5. The scorecard shows that there was one new consultation on the LGPS 

regulations in the October to December 2014 quarter.  This related to the 
establishment of Pension Boards, which was discussed at the last meeting 
of the sub-committee on 20th January 2015.  The establishment of the 
Pension Board was agreed by full Council on 25th February 2015. 

 
 
6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

6.1. Not applicable. 
 
7. CONSULTATION 

7.1 Not applicable. 
 
8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Not applicable. 
  

Page 9



9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Not applicable. 
 
10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Not applicable. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT  

11.1. The Pension Fund risk register is attached in Appendix 5. 
 
12. PROCUREMENT AND IT STRATEGY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. Not applicable. 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

    

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1: Scorecard at 31st December 2014 

Appendix 2: Deloitte quarterly report for quarter ended 31st December 2014 

Appendix 3: Barnett Waddingham quarterly report at 31st December 2014 

Appendix 4: Cashflow monitoring 

Appendix 5: Pension Fund Risk Register 

Appendix 6: Pension Fund Voting Summary  

Page 10



Appendix 1: Scorecard at 31st December 2014 
 

HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM PENSION FUND  
QUARTERLY MONITORING 

 
 

 

Sep 14 Dec 14 Mar 15 Jun 15 

Comment/ 
Report 

Ref if applicable 
 

INVESTMENTS 

Value (£m) 785.4 831.1   
Deloitte report 
Appendix 2 

% return quarter 2.1% 5.9%   

% return 1 year 8.3% 11.3%   

LIABILITIES 

Value (£m) 927.3 945.9   Barnett 
Waddingham 

report Appendix 3 
Deficit (£m) 133.6 118.9   

Funding Level 86% 87%   

MEMBERSHIP 

Active members 4,084 4,014   

N/A 
Deferred beneficiaries 5,871 5,943   

Pensioners 4,473 4,468   

Employers 30 30   

ADMINISTRATION 

Overall targets met by 
Capita excluding backlog 

78.7% 93.4% 
  

N/A 
Overall targets met by 
Capita including backlog 

49.6% 56.6% 
  

CASHFLOW 

Cash balance £8.14m £3.51m   
Appendix 4 

Variance from forecast + £226k 0   

RISK 

No. of new risks N/A    
Appendix 5 

No. of ratings changed N/A    

VOTING 

No. of resolutions voted 
on by fund managers 

217 334   Appendix 6 

LGPS REGULATIONS 

New consultations None One   
N/A 

New sets of regulations None None   

 

Page 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

.  

 London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham Pension Fund 
Investment Performance Report  
to 31 December 2014 – Executive Summary 

 

 Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited 
February 2015 

 

      

Page 12



 

 

Contents 

1 Market Background 1 

2 Performance Overview 2 

3 Total Fund 3 

4 Summary of Manager Ratings 6 

5 Majedie – UK Equity 8 

6 MFS – Overseas Equity 9 

7 Ruffer – Absolute Return 10 

8 Goldman Sachs – Absolute Return Bonds 11 

9 LGIM – LDI Bonds 12 

Appendix 1 – Fund and Manager Benchmarks 13 

Appendix 2 – Manager Ratings 14 

Appendix 3 - Risk warnings & Disclosures 15 

 

 

 

Page 13



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 30 September 2014    1 

1 Market Background 

Three and twelve months to 31 December 2014 

UK equities offered a modest return over the 3 months to 31 December 2014, with the FTSE All Share Index 

returning 0.6%. Concerns over Europe and the wider global economy, with falling Chinese demand and Japan 

entering deflation, proved to be a drag on UK equity markets over the quarter. Oil prices also fell over the quarter - 

a trend which has continued post the quarter end. 

Mid cap companies led the way in the fourth quarter with the FTSE 250 returning 5.2%. There was a marked 

difference in performance at the sector level, with the Technology sector offering the highest return of 9.0%. The 

Oil & Gas sector was the worst performing over the quarter, with falling oil prices contributing to a return of -12.2%. 

Overseas equity markets outperformed the UK in both sterling and local currency terms over the fourth quarter of 

2014, returning 4.5% and 3.0% respectively. While currency hedging was detrimental to investors over the quarter, 

this was down to as sterling’s depreciation versus the US dollar. At a regional level, the Japanese market delivered 

the highest local currency return of 6.8%, but only returned 1.6% in sterling terms as the yen depreciated. Europe 

(excluding the UK) was the poorest performing region, returning -1.4% in sterling terms and -0.7% in local currency 

terms respectively following persistent anaemic economic growth in the Eurozone. 

UK nominal gilts performed positively over the fourth quarter as yields fell across the curve, with the UK seen as a 

higher yielding safe haven for global investors. The All Stocks Gilt Index returned 6.3% over the 3 month period 

and the Over 15 Year Gilt Index returned 11.2%. Real yields on UK index-linked gilts also fell over the period. The 

Over 5 Year Index-linked Gilt Index returned 9.4% over the quarter. Corporate bonds performed positively over the 

fourth quarter, with the iBoxx All Stocks Non Gilt Index returning 4.3% on the back of the fall in gilt yields and in 

spite of widening credit spreads. 

Over the year to 31 December 2014, the FTSE All Share Index returned 1.2%. At the sector level, Health Care 

delivered the highest return (10.7%) performing well ahead of the poorest performing sector over the year, Oil & 

Gas (-13.3%). Global markets outperformed the UK in both sterling and local currency terms over the year. The 

FTSE All World Index returned 11.3% in sterling terms and 9.9% in local currency terms. Currency hedging was 

therefore detrimental as sterling depreciated against the US dollar.  

UK nominal gilts delivered an exceptionally high return over the last 12 months as gilt yields fell across all 

maturities, most markedly at the longer end of the curve. The All Stocks Gilt Index returned 13.9% and the Over 15 

Year Gilt Index returned 26.1% over the 12 month period. The Over 5 Year Index-linked Gilt Index returned 27.3% 

over the year. Corporate bond markets performed positively over the 12 months to 31 December 2014, benefitting 

from the fall in gilt yields, with the iBoxx All Stocks Non Gilt Index returning 12.2%. 

The UK property market continued to perform strongly, returning 4.4% over the quarter and 19.3% over the year to 

31 December 2014. 

Page 14



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    2 

2 Performance Overview 
Breakdown of Fund Performance by Manager as at 31 December 2014          

Fund Manager 
3 month 

(%) 

1 year  

 (%) 

2 year 

 (%) p.a. 

3 year 

 (%) p.a. 

5 year 

 (%) p.a. 

UK Equity Mandate             

  Majedie 3.5 5.5 17.5 17.2 12.8 

FTSE All Share   0.6 1.2 10.6 11.1 8.7 

Difference   2.9 4.3 6.9 6.1 4.1 

Overseas Equity Mandate             

  MFS 9.0 13.8 16.8 15.8 11.6 

MSCI AC World Growth (ex UK)   6.2 13.3 17.3 15.6 11.3 

Difference   2.8 0.5 -0.5 0.2 0.2 

Dynamic Asset Allocation Mandate             

  Ruffer 3.5 5.3 8.3 6.8 7.3 

3 Month Sterling LIBOR + 4% p.a   1.1 4.6 4.5 4.7 4.7 

Difference   2.4 0.7 3.8 2.2 2.6 

Matching Fund             

  Goldman Sachs -1.6 -0.6 1.7 3.2 2.0 

3 Month Sterling LIBOR + 2% p.a   0.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.7 

Difference   -2.3 -3.2 -0.9 0.5 -0.7 

  Legal & General  18.0 45.7 21.8 n/a n/a 

Bespoke liability related benchmark  11.4 26.7 13.1 n/a n/a 

Difference   6.5 19.0 8.7 n/a n/a 

Private Equity             

  Invesco 3.7 35.2 19.9 13.5 18.6 

  Unicapital  5.3 5.6 5.7 3.1 8.7 

Total Fund    5.9 11.3 13.3 11.9 9.9 

Benchmark*   3.2 7.8 9.5 8.8 8.7 

Difference   2.7 3.5 3.8 3.1 1.2 

Liability Benchmark + 2.2% p.a.   6.3 15.5 9.2 7.1 11.0 
Source: Northern Trust (Custodian). Figures are quoted net of fees and estimated by Deloitte. Differences may not tie due to rounding. 
 (*) The Total Assets benchmark is the weighted average performance of the target asset allocation 

P
a
g
e
 1

5



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    3 

-5%

-3%

-1%

1%

3%

5%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

%
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 f

ro
m

 b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk

Total Fund - over the last three years

Quarterly Excess Return 3 Year Rolling Excess Return

3 Total Fund 

Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Source: Northern Trust. Relative performance may not tie due to rounding. 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

(2) Average weighted benchmark 

Over the quarter, the Total Fund outperformed its fixed weighted benchmark by 2.7% on a net of fees basis.  

Over the one and three year period to 31 December 2014 the Fund outperformed its benchmark by 3.5% and 3.1% 

per annum respectively net of fees. 

The chart below compares the gross performance of the Fund relative to the fixed weight benchmark over the three 

years to 31 December 2014, highlighting the strong relative returns over the last couple of years – much of which 

can be attributed to the outperformance achieved by Majedie.  

 

  

 Last Quarter 

 (%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years 
(% p.a.) 

Three Years 

(% p.a.) 

Five Years  

(% p.a.) 

Total Fund  – Gross of fees 6.0 11.7 13.7 12.3 10.3 

Net of fees
(1) 

5.9 11.3 13.3 11.9 9.9 

Benchmark
(2)

 3.2 7.8 9.5 8.8 8.7 

Gross performance relative 
to fixed benchmark 

2.8 3.9 4.2 3.5 1.6 

Page 16



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    4 

0.8%
0.7%

0.0%

0.3%

-0.2%

1.0%

0.2%

2.8%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 T
o

ta
l 
F
u

n
d

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 

Relative Contributions to Total Fund Performance - Quarter

1.3%

0.2%

-0.1%

0.2%

-0.2%

2.6%

0.0%

3.9%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 T
o

ta
l 
F
u

n
d

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 

Relative Contributions to Total Fund Performance - Annual

Attribution of Gross Performance to 31 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On a gross performance basis, the Fund outperformed the composite benchmark by 2.8% over the fourth quarter 

of 2014, with positive contributions from Majedie, MFS and LGIM in particular. Goldman Sachs was the only 

manager to contribute negative relative performance.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Over the last year the Fund outperformed the composite benchmark by 3.9%, with LGIM and Majedie driving the 

longer term outperformance, more than offsetting the below-target performance from Goldman Sachs.  

  

Page 17



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    5 

3.3%

2.4%

-4.3%

-0.7%

-4.7%

2.7%

0.8%

0.5%

3.9%

1.7%

-3.4%

-0.5%

-4.1%

1.1%

0.8%

0.6%

-6.0% -5.0% -4.0% -3.0% -2.0% -1.0% 0.0% 1.0% 2.0% 3.0% 4.0% 5.0%

Majedie

MFS

Transitional Liquidity Fund

Ruffer

Goldman Sachs

LGIM

Invesco

Unicapital

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

Q4 14 Q3 14

Asset Allocation 

The table below shows the assets held by manager as at 31 December 2014 alongside the Benchmark Allocation. 

    Actual Asset Allocation  

Manager Asset Class 30 Sep 
2014 (£m) 

31 Dec 
2014 (£m) 

30 Sep 
2014 (%) 

31 Dec 
2014 (%) 

Benchmark 
Allocation (%) 

Majedie UK Equity 
(Active) 

207.2 214.6 26.4 25.8 22.5 

MFS Overseas Equity 
(Passive) 

189.9 207.3 24.2 24.9 22.5 

  Total Equity 397.1 421.8 50.6 50.8 45.0 

LGIM Liquidity Fund 120.7 120.8 15.4 14.5 18.8 

Ruffer Absolute Return 83.9 87.0 10.7 10.5 11.2 

  Sub –total 204.6 207.9 26.1 25.0 30.0 

Goldman 
Sachs 

Absolute Return 
Bond 

65.7 64.6 8.4 7.8 12.5 

LGIM Matching 106.7 125.9 13.6 15.2 12.5 

  Total Matching 172.4 190.5 21.9 22.9 25.0 

Invesco Private Equity 6.6 6.3 0.8 0.8 0.0 

Unicapital Private Equity 4.7 4.5 0.6 0.5 0.0 

  Total Private 
Equity 

11.3 10.9 1.4 1.3 0.0 

  Total 785.4 831.1 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Source: Northern Trust (Custodian) and have not been independently verified 

Figures may not sum to total due to rounding 

Over the quarter the market value of the assets rose by c. £45.7m with all mandates delivering positive returns, 

with the exception of Goldman Sachs’ Absolute Return Bonds strategy. 

For the asset allocation chart below, the disinvestment out of Barings into the transitional LGIM liquidity fund has 

been treated as having the former Barings benchmark allocation of 18.8%. As can be seen below, the Fund 

remains overweight Majedie and MFS relative to the benchmark allocation at the expense of the former Barings 

allocation and Goldman Sachs. The LGIM Matching mandate grew to 2.7% above its benchmark allocation 

following strong relative quarterly returns. 

 

Page 18



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    6 

4 Summary of Manager Ratings 

The table below summarises Deloitte’s ratings of the managers employed by the Fund and triggers against which 

managers should be reviewed. 

Manager Mandate Triggers for Review Rating 

Majedie UK Equity Further turnover within the core investment team  

Re-opening the UK equity products with no clear limits on the value of 
assets that they would take on 

1 

 

MFS Overseas Equity  Departures of either of the lead portfolio managers 

Indications of a change to the process or investment philosophy  

1 

Ruffer Absolute Return Departure of either of the co-portfolio managers from the business 

Any significant change in ownership structure 

n/a 

Goldman 
Sachs 

Bonds Significant changes to the investment team responsible for the Fund 

Any significant change in process or philosophy 

2 

LGIM Matching Bonds Departures of senior members of the LDI investment team 1 

* The Provisional rating is applied where we have concerns over changes to an investment manager 

Majedie  

From the UK equity side of the business, Majedie commented on the continuation of pension scheme de-risking 

over the past year which has seen a further outflow of money. However Majedie has been able to recycle much of 

the capacity that has been freed up, also adding assets to the Tortoise fund which has doubled in size over the last 

year. Pension scheme investors now only account for 45% of the Fund’s AuM.  

Over the quarter, Ryan Quinn joined as an Operations Analyst and Jasmine Chudasama as an Operations 

Associate. Adam Parker (Co-Founder and Portfolio Manager) announced his retirement, effective 30 June 2015. 

Adam is currently co-managing the UK Smaller Companies Fund with Richard Staveley, who will take over full 

management of the Fund.  The expectation is that Parker will remain involved with Majedie after 30 June in a 

consulting role. 

Deloitte view – We continue to rate Majedie positively for its UK equity capabilities and while we do not see the 

departure of Adam Parker as a particular source of concern by itself, we recognise that the success of the business 

to date can be attributed to a handful of senior, experienced individuals who will, at some point, look to exit.  

Majedie recognises the need to carefully manage succession planning within the team and believes the multi-

manager approach helps smooth transitions. 

MFS 

There were no changes to the team managing the strategy over the quarter and the process remains unchanged.  

Deloitte View: We continue to regard MFS’ global equity capabilities positively but recognise that the performance 

of the strategy utilised by the Fund has not lived up to expectations. 

Ruffer 

There were no changes to the team or process over the quarter.  Ruffer continues to hold around 40% of the fund 

in inflation linked bonds. 

Page 19



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    7 

Since the quarter end, Ruffer has contacted clients requesting approval to incorporate an allocation to a series of 

strategies that are expected to benefit if equity markets suffer a sharp de-rating.  The proposed strategies will be 

executed using a combination of derivatives and be held in an in-house fund. 

Deloitte view – The Ruffer product is distinctive within the universe of diversified growth managers in that it is 

more concentrated than most of its peers.  

Goldman Sachs 

There were no changes to the team or processes applied in the management of the Fund’s mandate during the 

quarter.  Since the quarter end it has been announced that David Bowen who ran the Emerging Markets Currency 

team has left the business to “pursue other opportunities”.  Sam Finkelstein who, prior to February last year, was 

responsible for both Emerging Market Debt and Currency will resume the leadership of the currency element while 

a replacement for Bowen is found. 

Deloitte view – Goldman Sachs offers a risk-controlled product investing across a range of different categories of 

bonds and bond like investments. 

We do not believe the departure of Bowen is a cause for concern. 

LGIM 

LGIM continues to grow its business across both the passive management and investment solutions, with no 

significant changes to the team or processes over the quarter. 

Deloitte view – We rate LGIM positively for their passive and LDI capabilities.  

 

 

Page 20



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    8 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

Majedie UK Equity

Quarterly Excess Return 3 Year Rolling Excess Return

Q
u

a
r
te

r
ly

 E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

5 Majedie – UK Equity 

Majedie was appointed to manage an actively managed segregated UK equity portfolio.  The manager’s 

remuneration is a combination of a tiered fixed fee, based on the value of assets and a performance related fee of 

20% of the outperformance which is payable when the excess return over the FTSE All Share +2% p.a. target 

benchmark over a rolling three year period. The investment with Majedie comprises a combination of the UK Equity 

Fund (no more than 30%), the UK Focus Fund and a holding in Majedie’s long/short equity fund, Tortoise (no more 

than 10%). 

UK equity – Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Northern Trust 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The outperformance of the UK Equity Fund over the quarter was a significant contributor to the overall performance 

of the Fund as a whole. The UK Focus Fund outperformed the FTSE All Share by 4.6% over the quarter, returning 

5.2% gross of fees, although this was offset to an extent by the Tortoise Fund which returned 2.1%.   

Majedie’s exposure to European telecom companies were amongst the contributors to outperformance over the 

quarter. Positive stock selection in the UK Focus Fund helped provide excess returns as the Fund is more 

concentrated and contains Majedie’s highest conviction stocks. The Fund did suffer some losses in Q4 from 

holding Tesco, however the majority of this has been made back following the quarter end, as Tesco’s share price 

has risen in Q1 2015. 

 Last Quarter 

(%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years
 

 (% p.a.)
(1)

 

Three Years  

(% p.a.) 

Five Years 

 (% p.a.) 

Majedie – Gross of fees 3.6 5.9 17.9 17.6 13.2 

Net of fees
(1) 

3.5 5.5 17.5 17.2 12.8 

Benchmark 0.6 1.2 10.6 11.1 8.7 

Target 1.1 3.2 12.6 13.1 10.7 

Gross performance relative to 
Benchmark 

3.0 4.7 7.3 6.5 4.5 

Page 21



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    9 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

MFS Overseas Equity

Quarterly Excess Return 3 Year Rolling Excess Return

Q
u

a
r
te

r
ly

 E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

6 MFS – Overseas Equity 

MFS was appointed to manage an overseas equity portfolio with the objective of delivering 2% outperformance on 

MSCI AC World Growth Ex UK Index benchmark over rolling three year period.  The manager is remunerated on a 

tiered fixed fee based on the value of assets. 

Overseas Equity – Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Northern Trust. Relative performance may not tie due to rounding. 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The MFS fund outperformed its benchmark by 3.2% and 0.5% over the quarter and one year period respectively to 

31 December 2014, net of fees. Strong stock selection accounted for the majority of outperformance, with sector 

positioning contributing 0.4% and currency effect contributing 0.6%. The Fund’s holdings of Accenture, the US 

management consulting firm, contributed to outperformance as the shares reacted positively to strong quarterly 

returns from revenue growth and margin improvements. 

MFS has a growth bias and for the purposes of this analysis is measured against a growth index. While the fund 

has outperformed its benchmark over the longer term, it has not been able to meet its outperformance target which 

is to beat the benchmark by +2% p.a.   

 Last Quarter 

(%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years
(1) 

 (% p.a.) 

Three Years  

(% p.a.) 

Five Years 

 (% p.a.) 

MFS – Gross of fees 9.1 14.2 17.2 16.3 12.0 

Net of fees
(1)

 9.0 13.8 16.8 15.8 11.6 

Benchmark 6.2 13.3 17.3 15.6 11.3 

Target 6.7 15.3 19.3 17.6 13.3 

Gross performance relative 
to Benchmark 

2.9 1.0 0.0 0.6 0.7 

Page 22



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    10 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

Ruffer Absolute Return

Quarterly Excess Return 3 Year Rolling Excess Return

Q
u

a
r
te

r
ly

 E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

7 Ruffer – Absolute Return 

Ruffer was appointed to manage an absolute return mandate with the aim of outperforming the 3 month Sterling 

LIBOR benchmark by 4% p.a. The manager has a fixed fee based on the value of assets. 

Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

Source: Northern Trust. Relative performance may not tie due to rounding. 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ruffer outperformed its target by 2.6% over the quarter and 1.5% over the one year period to 31 December 2014, 

net of fees. Ruffer has outperformed its target over the longer three and five year periods, mainly due to 

exceptional performance around the turn of the year 2012/13. 

Options positions within the portfolio helped performance during the “flash crash” in October when yields on US 

Treasuries fell sharply.  Performance was helped by the portfolio’s index linked holdings, which delivered strong 

gains, further strength in the US dollar and the recovery in the Japanese equity market. 

 

 Last Quarter 

(%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years 

 (% p.a.)
(1) 

Three Years  

(% p.a.) 

Five Years 

 (% p.a.) 

Ruffer - Gross of fees 3.7 6.1 9.2 7.6 8.1 

Net of fees
(1)

 3.5 5.3 8.3 6.8 7.3 

Benchmark 1.1 4.6 4.5 4.7 4.7 

Target 1.1 4.6 4.5 4.7 4.7 

Gross performance relative to 
Benchmark 

2.6 1.5 4.6 3.0 3.4 

Page 23



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    11 

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

-5%

-4%

-3%

-2%

-1%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

Goldman Sachs Absolute Return Bonds

Quarterly Excess Return 3 Year Rolling Excess Return

Q
u

a
r
te

r
ly

 E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

 

8 Goldman Sachs – Absolute Return Bonds 

Goldman Sachs was appointed to manage an active bond portfolio with an aim of outperforming the 3 Month 

Sterling LIBOR by 2% over a rolling three year period. The fees are based on the value of assets invested in the 

fund. 

Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

Source: Northern Trust. Relative performance may not tie due to rounding. 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Goldman Sachs underperformed its target by 2.2% over the quarter and 2.8% over the year to 31 December, net of 

fees. However, over the three year period, the Fund has performed ahead of its target by 1.0% p.a.  

During the quarter the main detractors from performance came from the short duration positions in the US and UK 

and the country strategies. The credit growth strategy, within the currency strategy, also detracted from 

performance. 

During the quarter risk within the portfolio spiked as a result of the increase in market volatility to the extent that it 

required risk levels to be reduced in October and then again in November. 

 Last Quarter 

(%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years 

 (% p.a.) 

Three Years  

(% p.a.) 

Five Years 

 (% p.a.) 

Goldman Sachs – Gross of fees -1.5 -0.2 2.1 3.6 2.4 

Net of fees
(1)

 -1.6 -0.6 1.7 3.2 2.0 

Benchmark 0.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.7 

Target 0.6 2.6 2.5 2.6 2.7 

Gross Performance relative to 
Benchmark 

-2.2 -2.7 -0.4 1.0 -0.3 

Page 24



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    12 

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Q4 14Q3 14Q2 14Q1 14Q4 13Q3 13Q2 13Q1 13Q4 12Q3 12Q2 12Q1 12

Q
u

a
r
te

r
ly

 E
x
c
e
s
s
 R

e
tu

r
n

LGIM LDI Bonds

9 LGIM – LDI Bonds 

LGIM has a liability matching mandate with the aim of tracking the performance of a leveraged mixture of inflation-

linked bonds. Fees are charged based on the value of assets, subject to a minimum fee each year. 

Investment Performance to 31 December 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Northern Trust. Relative performance may not tie due to rounding. 

(1) Estimated by Deloitte 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In the table and chart above we have only shown the performance since the mandate was changed to the current 

bespoke LDI structure.   

Over the quarter, the portfolio outperformed its measurement benchmark by 6.6% net of fees.  

It should be borne in mind that the portfolio has not been rebalanced since it was put in place. The initial structure 

of the mandate was based on cash flows from the 2010 valuation provided by the previous investment advisor. The 

current measurement benchmark may no longer be appropriate. 

 

 
Last Quarter 

(%) 

One Year  

(%) 

Two Years 

 (% p.a.) 

Since Inception 

31/03/12 

 (% p.a.)
 

LGIM – Gross of fees 18.0 46.0 22.0 6.2 

Net of fees
(1)

 18.0 45.7 21.8 6.2 

Benchmark 11.4 26.7 13.1 4.0 

Gross performance 
relative to benchmark 

6.6 19.2 8.8 2.2 

Page 25



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    13 

Appendix 1 – Fund and Manager Benchmarks 

The table in this Appendix details the benchmarks and outperformance targets, for the Total Fund and each 

individual manager. 

Total Fund 

Inception: 31 December 1999.  

Manager Asset Class Allocation Benchmark Inception Date 

Majedie UK Equity 22.5% FTSE All-Share Index +2% p.a. over 
three year rolling periods 

31/08/05 

MFS Overseas Equity 22.5% MSCI AC World Growth Ex UK index 31/08/05 

Barings* Dynamic Asset 
Allocation 

18.8% 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4% p.a. 31/07/08 

Ruffer Dynamic Asset 
Allocation 

11.2% 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4% p.a. 31/07/08 

Goldman 
Sachs 

Absolute Return Bonds 12.5% 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +2% p.a. 31/03/03 

LGIM LDI Bonds 12.5% Track the performance of a leveraged 
mixture of inflation-linked government 
bonds 

11/01/12 

Invesco Private Equity 0.0% n/a 30/09/09 

Unicapital Private Equity 0.0% n/a 30/09/09 

 Total  100.0% Liability Benchmark + 2.2%  

* Mandate with Barings was terminated and assets disinvested on 29 August 2014 and transferred to a cash fund with LGIM on a temporary 

basis.  

 

The benchmark used to measure the estimated movement in liabilities for the Fund, the “Liability Benchmark” is 

defined using the following range of index linked gilts, designed to closely match the Fund’s liabilities. 

45% Index Linked Treasury Gilt 1.25%   2017 

20% Index Linked Treasury Gilt 1.25%   2027 

20% Index Linked Treasury Gilt 1.25%   2055 

10% Index Linked Treasury Gilt 1.125% 2037 

5% Index Linked Treasury Gilt 0.75%   2047 

 

The investment objective for the Fund is to achieve the Liability Benchmark plus 2.2% per annum. 

Page 26



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    14 

Appendix 2 – Manager Ratings 

Based on our manager research process, we assign ratings to the investment managers for specific products or 

services.  The ratings are based on a combination of quantitative and qualitative factors, where the inputs for the 

qualitative factors come from a series of focused meetings with the investment managers.  The ratings reflect our 

expectations of the future performance of the particular product or service, based on an assessment of: 

· The manager’s business management; 

· The sources of ideas that go to form the portfolio (“alpha generation”); 

· The process for including the ideas into the portfolio (“alpha harnessing”); and 

· How the performance is delivered to the clients. 

On the basis of the research and analysis, managers are rated from 1 (most positive) to 4 (most negative), where 

managers rated 1 are considered most likely to deliver outperformance, net of fees, on a reasonably consistent 

basis.  Managers rated 1 will typically form the basis of any manager selection short-lists.   

Where there are developments with an investment manager that cause an element of uncertainty we will make the 

rating provisional for a short period of time, while we carry out further assessment of the situation. 

 

 

Page 27



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Fund – Investment Performance Report to 31 December 2014    15 

Appendix 3 - Risk warnings & Disclosures 

 

§ Past performance is not necessarily a guide to the future. 

§ The value of investments may fall as well as rise and you may not get back the amount invested. 

§ Income from investments may fluctuate in value. 

§ Where charges are deducted from capital, the capital may be eroded or future growth constrained. 

§ Investors should be aware that changing investment strategy will incur some costs. 

§ Any recommendation in this report should not be viewed as a guarantee regarding the future performance of 

the products or strategy.  

 

 

Our advice will be specific to your current circumstances and intentions and therefore will not be suitable for use at any other 

time, in different circumstances or to achieve other aims or for the use of others.  Accordingly, you should only use the advice 

for the intended purpose. 

Our advice must not be copied or recited to any other person than you and no other person is entitled to rely on our advice for 

any purpose.  We do not owe or accept any responsibility, liability or duty towards any person other than you. 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

Other than as stated below, this document is confidential and prepared solely for your information and that of other 

beneficiaries of our advice listed in our engagement letter. Therefore you should not refer to or use our name or 

this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make 

them available or communicate them to any other party. If this document contains details of an arrangement that 

could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality apply to the details of that 

arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax authorities).  In any event, no other party is 

entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who 

is shown or gains access to this document. 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited. Registered office: Hill House, 1 Little New Street, London EC4A 3TR, 

United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 3981512. 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited is a subsidiary of Deloitte LLP, the United Kingdom member firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company limited by guarantee, whose member firms are 

legally separate and independent entities. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the 

legal structure of DTTL and its member firms. 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.  

   

 

Page 29



  

  

 

Graeme D Muir FFA 

Barnett Waddingham LLP 

16 February 2015 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham 

Pension Fund 

 
Funding Update Report 

 

as at 31 December 2014  

Page 30



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 2 of 7 

Contents 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Assets 4 

3. Changes in market conditions – market yields and discount rates 5 

4. Summary of Results 6 

Appendix 1 Financial position since previous valuation 7 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 3 of 7 

1. Introduction 

1.1. We have carried out a quarterly monitoring assessment of the London Borough of Hammersmith and 

Fulham Pension Fund (the Fund) as at 31 December 2014.  The purpose of this assessment is to provide 

an update on the funding position. 

1.2. We assess the funding position on a smoothed basis which is an estimate of the average position over a 

six month period spanning the reporting date.  As the smoothing adjustment reflects average market 

conditions spanning a six month period straddling the reporting date, the smoothed figures are 

projected numbers and likely to change up until three months after the reporting date.  The smoothed 

results are indicative of the underlying trend. 

Page 32



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 4 of 7 

2. Assets 

2.1. The estimated (unsmoothed) asset allocation of the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Pension Fund as at 31 December 2014 is as follows: 

 

2.2. The increase in the cash allocation is due to the recent sale of some absolute return assets close to the 

valuation date. For the purposes of this interim review we have assumed that the cash proceeds will be 

reinvested in similar growth assets. 

2.3. The investment return achieved by the Fund’s assets in market value terms for the quarter to 31 

December 2014 is estimated to be 5.1%.  The return achieved since the previous valuation is estimated to 

be 15.8% (which is equivalent to 8.7% p.a.). 

2.4. The following chart shows the changes in equity and bond markets since the previous actuarial valuation 

and compares them with the estimated actual fund returns and the expected fund returns assumed at the 

previous valuation: 

 

2.5. As we can see the asset value as at 31 December 2014 in market value terms is slightly more than where 

it was projected to be at the previous valuation. 

Assets (market value)

£000s % £000s % £000s %

Absolute return 67,288 8.1% 68,314 8.6% 191,468 26.4%

Commodities 2,772 0.3% 2,823 0.4% 4,615 0.6%

Hedge funds 125,924 15.1% 106,707 13.4% 101,396 14.0%

UK and overseas equities 468,261 56.2% 438,361 55.2% 390,299 53.9%

Gilts 32,481 3.9% 27,366 3.4% 23,755 3.3%

Cash and accruals 136,468 16.4% 149,885 18.9% 12,553 1.7%

Total assets 833,193 100% 793,455 100% 724,086 100%

31 Dec 2014 30 Sep 2014 31 Mar 2013

Page 33



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 5 of 7 

3. Changes in market conditions – market yields and 

discount rates 

3.1. The actual investment returns earned by the Fund will affect the value of the Fund’s assets.  The value of 

the Fund’s liabilities, however, is dependent on the assumptions used to value the future benefits 

payable.  The following table show how these assumptions have changed since the last triennial 

valuation: 

 

3.2. The key assumption which has the greatest impact on the valuation of liabilities is the real discount rate – 

the higher the real discount rate the lower the value of liabilities.  As we see the real discount rate is 

broadly similar as at the 2013 valuation, maintaining the value of liabilities used for funding purposes. 

Assumptions (smoothed)

Nominal Real Nominal Real Nominal Real

Pension increases 2.56% - 2.66% - 2.74% -

Salary increases 4.36% 1.80% 4.46% 1.80% 4.54% 1.80%

Discount rate 5.70% 3.14% 5.84% 3.18% 5.96% 3.22%

31 Dec 2014 30 Sep 2014 31 Mar 2013

% p.a. % p.a. % p.a.

Page 34



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 6 of 7 

4. Summary of Results 

4.1. The results of our assessment indicate that: 

· the current projection of the smoothed funding level as at 31 December 2014 is 87.4% and the average 

required employer contribution would be 21.2% of payroll assuming the deficit is to be paid by 2035; 

· this compares with the reported (smoothed) funding level of 82.9% and average required employer 

contribution of 21.9% of payroll at the 2013 funding valuation. 

4.2. The discount rate underlying the smoothed funding level as at 31 December 2014 is 5.7% p.a. The 

investment return required to restore the funding level to 100% by 2035, without the employers paying 

deficit contributions, would be 6.4% p.a. 

4.3. The funding position for each month since the formal valuation is shown in Appendix 1.  It should be 

borne in mind that the nature of the calculations is approximate and so the results are only indicative of 

the underlying position. 

4.4. We would be pleased to answer any questions arising from this report. 

 

 

Graeme D Muir FFA 

Partner 

 

Page 35



 

 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk                                                     London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund – Funding Update Report – 16 February 2015 

RESTRICTED 1014 Version 1 7 of 7 

Appendix 1 Financial position since previous valuation  

Below we show the financial position on a smoothed basis for each month since the previous full valuation.  As 

the smoothing adjustment reflects average market conditions spanning a six month period straddling the 

reporting date, the smoothed figures for the previous three months are projected numbers and likely to change 

up until three months after the reporting date. 

 

Smoothed

(% of payroll)

31 Mar 2013 715,915 863,421 (147,506) 83% 13.6% 8.3% 21.9% 6.0% 6.8%

30 Apr 2013 723,791 867,688 (143,897) 83% 13.6% 8.1% 21.7% 6.0% 6.8%

31 May 2013 728,946 868,509 (139,564) 84% 13.6% 7.8% 21.4% 6.0% 6.8%

30 Jun 2013 731,739 867,699 (135,960) 84% 13.5% 7.7% 21.1% 6.0% 6.8%

31 Jul 2013 735,705 868,567 (132,861) 85% 13.4% 7.5% 20.9% 6.1% 6.8%

31 Aug 2013 737,087 868,857 (131,770) 85% 13.3% 7.5% 20.8% 6.1% 6.9%

30 Sep 2013 741,569 872,754 (131,185) 85% 13.3% 7.4% 20.8% 6.1% 6.9%

31 Oct 2013 746,859 877,215 (130,356) 85% 13.4% 7.4% 20.8% 6.1% 6.8%

30 Nov 2013 750,901 877,319 (126,419) 86% 13.3% 7.2% 20.5% 6.1% 6.8%

31 Dec 2013 755,725 881,184 (125,459) 86% 13.3% 7.1% 20.4% 6.1% 6.8%

31 Jan 2014 760,194 884,185 (123,991) 86% 13.3% 7.1% 20.4% 6.1% 6.8%

28 Feb 2014 763,200 887,025 (123,825) 86% 13.3% 7.1% 20.4% 6.1% 6.8%

31 Mar 2014 767,141 891,546 (124,405) 86% 13.4% 7.1% 20.5% 6.1% 6.8%

30 Apr 2014 774,710 898,649 (123,939) 86% 13.4% 7.3% 20.7% 6.0% 6.8%

31 May 2014 777,240 903,109 (125,869) 86% 13.5% 7.4% 20.9% 6.0% 6.8%

30 Jun 2014 779,486 910,536 (131,049) 86% 13.6% 7.7% 21.4% 6.0% 6.7%

31 Jul 2014 786,787 919,151 (132,364) 86% 13.7% 8.0% 21.6% 5.9% 6.7%

31 Aug 2014 790,518 923,582 (133,064) 86% 13.7% 8.0% 21.7% 5.9% 6.7%

30 Sep 2014 793,688 927,324 (133,636) 86% 13.7% 8.1% 21.8% 5.9% 6.6%

31 Oct 2014 809,074 936,788 (127,714) 86% 13.9% 7.7% 21.6% 5.8% 6.5%

30 Nov 2014 820,047 942,475 (122,428) 87% 14.0% 7.4% 21.4% 5.7% 6.4%

31 Dec 2014 826,997 945,932 (118,935) 87% 14.0% 7.2% 21.2% 5.7% 6.4%

Valuation date Assets       £000s Liabilities  £000s
Surplus/ Deficit 

£000s

Funding 

level %

Past service 

ctbn

Ongoing cost
Total ctbn 

(% of 

payroll)

Discount 

rate

Return 

required 

to restore 

funding 

Page 36



Appendix 4: CASHFLOW MONITORING: October 2014 to December 2014 
 
Cashflow actuals and forecast for period October 2014 to September 2015 
 

 Oct14 

£000 

Nov14 

£000 

Dec14 

£000 

Jan15 

£000 

Feb15 

£000 

Mar15 

£000 

Apr15 

£000 

May15 

£000 

Jun15 

£000 

Jul15 

£000 

Aug15 

£000 

Sep15 

£000 

 Actual Actual Actual Actual F’cast F’cast F’cast F’cast F’cast F’cast F’cast F’cast 

Balance b/f 8,143 6,582 5,549 3,508 2,203 538 -947 4,518 2,803 1,768 733 -982 
             

Contributions 1,741 1,960 1,851 1,829 1,800 1,800 8,300 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 

Pensions -2,335 -2,356 -2,381 -2,360 -2,300 -2,300 -2,350 -2,350 -2,350 -2,350 -2,350 -2,350 

Lump Sums -881 -1,052 -45 -634 -390 -390 -390 -390 -390 -390 -390 -390 

Net TVs in/(out) 0 0 0 -103 -75 -75 -75 -75 -75 -75 -75 -75 

Expenses -86 -600 -1,481 -37 -700 -520 -20 -700 -20 -20 -700 -20 

Net cash in/(out) in month -1,561 -2,048 -2,056 -1,035 -1,665 -1,485 5,465 -1,715 -1,035 -1,035 -1,715 -1,035 
             

Withdrawals from  

Fund Managers  
0 1,015 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

             

Balance c/f 6,582 5,549 3,508 2,203 538 -947 4,518 2,803 1,768 733 -982 -2,017 

 
 
Cashflow actuals compared to forecast in October 2014 to December 2014 quarter 
 

 October 2014 November 2014 December 2014 Oct to Dec 2014 

 Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Forecast Actual Variance 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Contributions 1,800 1,741 1,800 1,960 1,800 1,851 152 

Pensions -2,300 -2,335 -2,300 -2,356 -2,300 -2,381 -172 

Lump Sums -390 -881 -390 -1,052 -390 -45 -808 

Net TVs in/(out) -75 0 -75 0 -75 0 225 

Expenses -20 -86 -1,700 -600 -20 -1,481 -427 

Withdrawals from Fund 
Managers  

0 0 0 1,015 0 15 1,030 

Totals -985 -1,561 -2,665 -1,033 -985 -2,041 0 

 

 
Notes on variances in quarter: 

• Lump sums higher than forecast 
in Oct and Nov.  Monthly 
average over the year in line with 
forecast. 

• Expenses higher than forecast 
due to Majedie performance fee. 

• Monies withdrawn from fund 
managers are private equity 
distributions. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Appendix 5: Pension Fund risk register, March 2015 
 

   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t Risk 

Rating 
Officer 

responsible 
Review 
Date 

1 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
That the combination of assets in 
the investment portfolio fails to 
fund the liabilities in the long term.  

• Investment strategy in place and 
reviewed periodically. 

• Performance is measured against a 
liability based benchmark. 

• Fund performance is reviewed 
quarterly. 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

2 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Fund managers fail to achieve the 
returns agreed in their 
management agreements. 

• Independent monitoring of fund 
manager performance by custodian 
against targets. 

• Investment adviser retained to keep 
watching brief. 

• Fund manager performance is 
reviewed quarterly. 

3 3 

Low 
 
9 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

3 

STRATEGIC: INVESTMENT 
Failure of custodian or 
counterparty. 

• At time of appointment, ensure 
assets are separately registered and 
segregated by owner. 

• Review of internal control reports on 
an annual basis. 

• Credit rating kept under review. 

2 5 

Low 
 

10 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 3

8



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

4 STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
The level of inflation and interest 
rates assumed in the valuation 
may be inaccurate leading to 
higher than expected liabilities. 

• Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

• Growth assets and inflation linked 
assets in the portfolio should rise as 
inflation rises. 
 

4 3 

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

5 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
There is insufficient cash available 
in the Fund to meet pension 
payments leading to investment 
assets being sold at sub-optimal 
prices to meet pension payments. 
 

• Cashflow forecast maintained and 
monitored. 

• Cashflow position reported to sub-
committee quarterly. 

• Cashflow requirement is a factor in 
current investment strategy review. 

2 1 

Very Low 
 
2 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

6 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme members live longer than 
expected leading to higher than 
expected liabilities. 
 
 

• Review at each triennial valuation 
and challenge actuary as required. 

 
4 2 

Low 
 
8 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 3

9



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk Rating Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

7 

STRATEGIC: FUNDING 
Scheme matures more quickly 
than expected due to public sector 
spending cuts, resulting in 
contributions reducing and pension 
payments increasing. 

• Review maturity of scheme at each 
triennial valuation. 

• Deficit contributions specified as lump 
sums, rather than percentage of 
payroll to maintain monetary value of 
contributions. 

• Cashflow position monitored monthly. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

8 

STRATEGIC: REGULATION 
Pensions legislation or regulation 
changes resulting in an increase in 
the cost of the scheme or 
increased administration. 

• Maintain links with central 
government and national bodies to 
keep abreast of national issues. 

• Respond to all consultations and 
lobby as appropriate to ensure 
consequences of changes to 
legislation are understood. 
 

3 4 

Medium 
 

12 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 

Director of HR 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 4

0



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

9 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Failure to comply with legislation leads 
to ultra vires actions resulting in 
financial loss and/or reputational 
damage. 
 

• Officers maintain knowledge of legal 
framework for routine decisions. 

• Eversheds retained for consultation 
on non-routine matters. 

2 2 

Very Low 
 
4 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

10 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Sub-committee members do not have 
appropriate skills or knowledge to 
discharge their responsibility leading to 
inappropriate decisions. 

• External professional advice is sought 
where required 
 

FUTURE ACTION to reduce score: 
Develop a knowledge and skills framework 
to evidence members’ existing knowledge 
and skills and provide training to enhance 
these if required. 
 

[4] 3 

 
Medium 

 
12 
 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

 
 
Score in [ ] to be reviewed by sub-committee members at the meeting. 
 
  

P
a
g
e
 4

1



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk Rating Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

11 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Officers do not have appropriate skills 
and knowledge to perform their roles 
resulting in the service not being 
provided in line with best practice and 
legal requirements. 

• Person specifications are used at 
recruitment to appoint officers with 
relevant skills and experience. 

• Training plans are in place for all 
officers as part of the performance 
appraisal arrangements. 

• Tri- and bi- borough nature of the 
pensions teams provides resilience 
and sharing of knowledge. 

FUTURE ACTION to reduce score: 
All officers involved with the Fund have 
relevant experience and through training 
courses are enhancing their knowledge, 
which should result in a lowering of the 
likelihood risk score. 
 

3 2 

 
 
 

Low 
 
6 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 

Director of HR 

March 
2015 

12 

OPERATIONAL: GOVERNANCE 
Inadequate, inappropriate or 
incomplete investment or actuarial 
advice is actioned leading to a financial 
loss or breach of legislation. 
 

• At time of appointment ensure 
advisers have appropriate 
professional qualifications and quality 
assurance procedures in place. 

• Sub-committee and officers scrutinise 
and challenge advice provided. 

2 2 

 
Very Low 

 
4 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 
Pensions 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 4

2



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

13 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Failure of an admitted or scheduled 
body leads to unpaid liabilities being 
left in the Fund to be met by others. 

• Transferee admission bodies required 
to have bonds in place at time of 
signing the admission agreement. 

• Regular monitoring of employers and 
follow up of expiring bonds. 

3 2 

Low 
 
6 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

14 

OPERATIONAL: FUNDING 
Ill health costs may exceed “budget” 
allocations made by the actuary 
resulting in higher than expected 
liabilities particularly for smaller 
employers. 

• Review “budgets” at each triennial 
valuation and challenge actuary as 
required. 

• Charge capital cost of ill health 
retirements to admitted bodies at the 
time of occurring. 

• Occupational health services provided 
by the Council and other large 
employers to address potential ill 
health issues early. 
 

3 2 

 
Low 
 
6 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 4

3



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

15 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Loss of funds through fraud or 
misappropriation leading to negative 
impact on reputation of the Fund as 
well as financial loss. 

• Third parties regulated by the FCA 
and separation of duties and 
independent reconciliation 
procedures in place. 

• Review of third party internal control 
reports. 

• Regular reconciliations of pension 
payments undertaken by Pensions 
Finance Team. 

• Periodic internal audits of Pensions 
Finance and HR teams. 
 

3 2 

 
Low 
 
6 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

16 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of fund manager or other 
service provider without notice 
resulting in a period of time without the 
service being provided or an 
alternative needing to be quickly 
identified and put in place. 
 

• Contract monitoring in place with all 
providers. 

• Procurement team send alerts 
whenever credit scoring for any 
provider changes for follow up action. 
 

3 1 

 
Very Low 

 
3 
 

Tri-borough 
Director of 
Treasury & 

Pensions and 
Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 4

4



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

17 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension payroll system 
resulting in pensioners not being paid 
in a timely manner. 
 

• Pensioner payroll system is subject to 
daily software backups and off-site 
duplication of records. 

• Disaster recovery procedures allow 
for pensioner payrolls to be run from a 
number of alternative UK sites other 
than Surbiton. 
 

1 5 

 
Very Low 

 
5 
 

Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

18 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure to pay pension benefits 
accurately leading to under or over 
payments. 
 

• Hartlink system allows for the majority 
of pensioner benefits to be 
automatically calculated by the 
administration system. 

• The majority of pensioner benefits are 
double-checked by the Pensions 
Client Team for accuracy. 

• Spot checks are also undertaken by 
the Client Team. 
 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 

 
 

Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

  

P
a
g
e
 4

5



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

19 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Failure of pension administration 
system resulting in loss of records and 
incorrect pension benefits being paid or 
delays to payment. 
 

• Pensioner administration system 
Hartlink is subject to daily software 
backups and off-site duplication of 
records. 

• Disaster recovery procedures allow 
for Hartlink to be run from a number 
of alternative UK sites other than 
Surbiton. 

• Payments can be made from other 
UK sites other than Surbiton. 
 

1 5 

Very Low 
 
5 

 
 

Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

20 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
Administrators do not have sufficient 
staff or skills to manage the service 
leading to poor performance and 
complaints. 
 
Continued overleaf 

• Some of the work has been moved to 
officers based outside Surbiton to 
ensure it is managed effectively and 
on time. 

• Complex casework is now being 
handled largely by Capita’s Technical 
Team who are more experienced and 
have the skills to resolve it. 

• Monthly meetings are taking place 
with Capita to review progress and 
ensure work is being handled 
effectively, supported by performance 
indicators across major work areas. 

2 3 

Low 
 
6 

 
 

Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

P
a
g
e
 4

6



   Residual 
risk score 

   

Ref Risk Mitigating Actions 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

Risk 
Rating 

Officer 
responsible 

Review 
Date 

20 
ctd 

 • Capita have daily conference calls to 
go through casework and highlight 
any problems for resolution. 
 

     

21 

OPERATIONAL: ADMINISTRATION 
The switch from Capita to Surrey 
County Council results in a disruption 
to the service or a loss of data leading 
to poor performance and complaints. 
 

• Extensive test data migrations are in 
place covering both pension 
administration and payroll 
administration. 

• Data being provided by Capita is 
being cleansed and run through 
Heywood data conversion checks for 
compliance. 

• Project plans are robust and include 
two payroll parallel runs. 

• An Exit Management Plan is being 
agreed with Capita to ensure nothing 
is missed from the transfer. 

• Pay elements are being rationalised 
to ensure consistency with standard 
practice 
Experienced staff from Surrey County 
Council will be used to run the service 
and train new employees.  

1 5 

Very Low 
 
5 

 
 

Bi-borough 
Director of 

HR 

March 
2015 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



Appendix 6: Pension Fund Voting Summary: October to December 2014 
 
 
The investment managers managing the Fund’s assets on a segregated basis are 
able to report on how they have voted the Fund’s specific holdings at AGMs and 
EGMs of companies the Fund is invested in.  The majority of the Fund’s equities are 
managed on a segregated basis by Majedie, MFS and Ruffer.  Majedie and Ruffer 
also hold small portions of the Fund’s monies in pooled funds, where votes are cast 
on behalf of the pooled fund as a whole. 
 
The investment managers all use the services of Institutional Shareholder Services 
(ISS) who are a leading provider of corporate governance research and provide 
advice to its clients about voting in line with corporate governance principles. 
 
The table below provides information about the votes cast in respect of the 
segregated assets during the quarter October to December 2014. This includes the 
number of occasions the managers voted against management recommendations 
and ISS recommendations. 
 
 

 Majedie MFS Ruffer 

No. of meetings 38 7 4 

No. of resolutions 267 53 14 

Votes not in line with management 6 11 1 

Votes not in line with ISS 13 0 3 

 
 

Page 48



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

PENSIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

17th March 2015 
 

PENSION FUND ACTUARIAL SERVICE 
 

Report of the Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Decision  
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Report Authors: Nicola Webb, Pension Fund Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 7641 4331 
E-mail: nwebb 
@westminster.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. The Fund Actuary, Graeme Muir of Barnett Waddingham, is attending the 
Sub-committee to brief members on his role and some of the key issues 
affecting the funding of the Pension Fund. 
 

1.2. It is proposed to extend the actuarial services contract by a further month to 
30th September 2015.  A re-tender process will be taking place over the 
coming months and a report to recommend an appointment based on the 
outcome of this process will be submitted to the Sub-committee’s meeting 
in September for a decision. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the contract for Pension Fund actuarial services with Barnett 
Waddingham is extended until 30th September 2015, as allowed for under 
the current contract. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. Not applicable. 
  

Agenda Item 5

Page 49



4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. All Local Government Pension Funds are required to appoint a Fund 
Actuary. The Fund Actuary is responsible for conducting triennial valuations 
of the Pension Fund and for setting the employer contribution rates for the 
employers in the Fund to pay.  Barnett Waddingham is the actuarial firm 
Hammersmith and Fulham have appointed and the Fund Actuary is 
Graeme Muir. 
 

4.2. In addition to carrying out triennial valuations, Barnett Waddingham also 
provide quarterly funding updates to the sub-committee, accounting 
valuations for employers and advice about the funding position of 
employers joining or leaving the Pension Fund. 

 
4.3. Barnett Waddingham was appointed in 2008 and the contract was 

extended to 31st August 2015 at the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee on 30th June 2014. 

 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1. The Fund Actuary, Graeme Muir, will be attending the Sub-committee 
meeting to explain his role and some of the key issues affecting funding.  
The presentation he will be referring to is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

5.2. As discussed in the report to the 30th June 2014 committee, it is planned to 
re-tender the actuarial contract on a tri-borough basis.  The tender process 
will be undertaken using the National LGPS framework, as this should 
result in the most efficient and cost effective process and result.   

 
5.3. In the light of the timing of forthcoming Sub-committee meetings, it is 

proposed to extend the contract for one further month to 30th September 
2015.  The current contract allows for extensions of up to 3 years and the 
previous extension was for 13 months.  A report recommending contract 
award once the re-tender process is complete will be submitted to the 
September meeting of the Sub-committee.  The appointment of Fund 
Actuary falls within the Sub-committee’s terms of reference. 

 

6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  
 

6.1. Not applicable. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 

7.1 Not applicable. 
 
8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Not applicable. 
 

  

Page 50



9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Not applicable. 
 
10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Not applicable. 
 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT  

11.1. The key risks to funding are shown in the Pension Fund Risk Register 
(Appendix 5 of the Quarterly Update Pack). 

 
 
12. PROCUREMENT AND IT STRATEGY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. Not applicable. 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

    

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1: Barnett Waddingham Funding Update  

Page 51



London Borough of Hammersmith 

and Fulham Pension Fund 

Funding Update 

graeme.muir@barnett-waddingham.co.uk March 2015 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



Agenda 

Purpose of the valuation 

How do we do it? 

Funding models and assumptions 

Where were we? 

Where have we got to? 

Questions 

2 

P
a

g
e
 5

3



Purpose of valuations 

• Many questions! 

Approach depends 
on question being 

asked 

• How much do employers need to pay in future to have 
enough assets to pay benefits? 

Ongoing triennial 
funding valuation 

• Help accountants compare 

• If we were a plc how much would we need to borrow to 
finance liabilities? 

Annual accounting 
valuations 

(IAS19/FRS17) 

• Have much do we need to fund on a minimum risk basis? 

• Do we we leave on the table? 

• Different approaches depending on employer situation 

Cessation 
valuations 

3 

P
a

g
e
 5

4



How do we do it? 

Step 1 

• Projection of all possible 
benefit payments for each 
member 

Step 2 

• Attach probabilities to 
each possible payment to 
get “expected” payments 

Step 3 

• Discount “expected” 
payments to obtain 
“value” 

4 

Total cashflows - £3.1bn 

P
a

g
e
 5

5



Discount Rates 

Choice of discount rate depends on the question being asked 

Funding valuation 

• What contributions are required to build up a fund of assets to meet pension 
liabilities for a given investment strategy? 

• Expected future investment returns 

• Different ways of assessing this 

Accounting valuation 

• How much would a corporate body need to borrow to finance their pension 
liabilities? 

• Corporate bond yields 

• Hard coded to remove actuarial judgement 

Cessation valuation 

• How much cash would we need to buy gilts to fund liabilities? 

• Gilt yields 

5 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



-100%

-75%

-50%

-25%

0%

25%

50%

75%

50 45 40 35 30 25 20 15

Years to 2010

Equity v Gilt Correlations

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19

O
u

tp
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

Timescale (years)

Historical ERPs (1959 to 2010)

50 year 90th percentile

50 year 75th percentile

50 year 50th percentile

Source: BGI Equity Gilt Study 2010

Funding valuation methods 

Top Down or Bottom Up Approach  

• Gilt plus models 

• Bottom up approach 

• Assumes equities will beat gilts long 

term (“equity risk premium”) 

• Nice and simple 

 

• Economic model

• Top down 

• Equity returns a function of  

• Dividend income and  

• Dividend/economic growth 

 

6 

P
a

g
e
 5

7



Funding strategy 
Change in average contributions 

The QE effect? 

The QE correction? 

We favour smoothed economic model 

7 

P
a

g
e
 5

8



What’s happened since valuation date ? 

• Actual of 8.7% per annum cf 
6.0% assumption

• More assets than projected 

Good 
investment 

returns 

• 2.6% rather than 2.7% 

• Lower projected liabilities 

Slightly lower 
long term 
inflation 

expectations 

• 5.7% rather than 6.0% 

• Higher NPV of projected 
liabilities 

Slightly lower 
discount rates 

8 

P
a

g
e
 5

9



Where have we got to? 

31 March 2013 31 December 2014 

Funding level 83% 87% 

Deficit £148m £119m 

Recovery period To 2035 To 2035 

Ongoing contribution rate 13.6% of payroll 14.0% of payroll 

Total contribution rate 21.9% of payroll 21.2% of payroll 

Looking good so far ! 

9 

P
a

g
e
 6

0



Any questions? 

10 

P
a

g
e
 6

1



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

PENSIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

17th March 2015 
 

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES  
 

Report of the Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Decision  
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Bi-borough Director for Finance 
 

Report Author: Nicola Webb, Pension Fund Officer 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 7641 4331 
E-mail: nwebb 
@westminster.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Management and Investment of 
Funds 2009 regulations require Pension Funds to prepare, publish and maintain a 
Statement of Investment Principles. It is recommended that the existing statement 
is updated to reflect recent changes in investment strategy. 
 

1.2. A whole fund benchmark reflecting the overall investment strategy of the Fund is 
recommended to monitor performance against the strategy going forward, 
replacing the current liability benchmark.  The regular funding level updates from 
the Fund Actuary enable the sub-committee to monitor liabilities. 

 
1.3. An increase in certain limits on investment are recommended to give the Fund 

flexibility in the choice of investments in the future. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the sub-committee approve the draft Statement of Investment Principles set 
out in Appendix 1, subject to consultation with the employers of the Pension Fund, 
and agreement of the final version being delegated to the Tri-Borough Director of 
Pensions and Treasury in consultation with the Chair of the Sub-committee. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 62



2.2. That the Sub-committee agree to increase the limits on investment as set out in 
the table, in line with the factors specified in section 5.5 of this report. 

 

Investment Type Regulatory 
limits 

Increased 
limits 

All contributions to any single partnership 2% 5% 

All contributions to partnerships 5% 30% 

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10% 15% 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in open ended investment companies 
where the collective investment schemes constituted 
by the companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
and all investments in open-ended investment 
companies where the unit trust schemes and the 
collective investment schemes constituted by those 
companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

Any single insurance contract 25% 35% 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. The LGPS regulations require Funds to update their Statements of Investment 
Principles within six months of a change to their investment arrangements. 
 

3.2. Increasing the limits on investments in line with the regulations will provide the 
Fund with greater flexibility in the choice of investments in the future.  The 
investment adviser’s advice on this matter is set out in Appendix 2. 

 
 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. The Local Government Pension Scheme Management and Investment of Funds 
2009 regulations require all Pension Funds to prepare, publish and maintain a 
Statement of Investment Principles.  The statement should cover how the Fund 
makes decisions about the investment of the Fund’s assets, and the regulations 
list some specific areas which must be covered: 

a) the types of investment to be held 
b) the balance between different types of investments 
c) risk, including the ways risks are managed 
d) the expected return on investments 
e) the realisation of investments 
f) the extent to which social, environmental or ethical considerations are taken in 

account in the selection of investments 
g) the exercise of voting rights 
h) stock lending 

Page 63



4.2. The regulations also require the statement to include the extent to which the Fund 
complies with the “Six principles of investment decision making”.  The principles 
were originally devised by Lord Myners when he conducted a review of 
investment decision making in 2001and have subsequently been adapted to make 
them relevant to the LGPS. 
 

4.3. The current Statement of Investment Principles was agreed by the Audit, 
Pensions and Standards Committee in June 2012.  The regulations require that 
the statement is updated regularly and within six months of any change to 
investment strategy.  Given the removal of Barings at the end of August 2014 and 
the subsequent agreement to a new asset allocation, it is timely to review the 
statement now. 

 
4.4. The regulations also state that it is a requirement to consult “such persons as it 

(the Pension Fund) considers appropriate” before finalising a revised statement. 
 
 

5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1. The draft Statement of Investment Principles attached at Appendix 1 is an update 
from the previous version to reflect the decision taken by the Sub-committee in 
January to change the asset allocation.  It reflects the decisions the Sub-
committee have already taken about investment products and managers. 
 

5.2. The draft proposes that the Sub-committee adopt a whole Fund benchmark which 
reflects the target asset allocation for the Fund and will enable the Sub-committee 
to monitor whether the overall strategy is meeting expectations.   

 
5.3. Currently the whole Fund benchmark is a liability benchmark, which attempts to 

approximate movement in the Fund’s liabilities.  However, the Sub-committee now 
receives a quarterly funding level update from the Fund Actuary, which gives a 
more accurate assessment of how the Fund’s liabilities have changed over each 
quarter and directly compares the value of liabilities to the value of the assets. 

 
5.4. The regulations set out in a schedule the limits Pension Funds are required to 

adhere to when selecting investments (see section 5.3 of the draft Statement of 
Investment Principles in Appendix 1)  The aim of these is to ensure Funds’ are 
appropriately diversified.  However the regulations also allow Funds to increase 
certain limits following a full consideration of the reasons to do so and having 
taken advice. 

 
5.5. It is recommended that given the Sub-committee’s intention to invest in further in 

pooled fund investment products, that an increase is considered to a number of 
the limits.  There are certain factors which the regulations require Pension Funds 
to specify when making a decision to increase limits – these are set out below: 

 
a) Description of the investment to which it applies 

The investments being considered are secure income investments which will 
diversify the Fund’s overall investment portfolio and provide inflation linked 
cashflows.   

Page 64



 
b) Limit on the amount of the investment 

It is proposed to increase the limits set out in the table below to provide the 
Fund with greater flexibility to make investments in products in line with the 
investment strategy. 
 

Investment Type Regulatory 
limits 

Increased 
limits 

All contributions to any single partnership 2% 5% 

All contributions to partnerships 5% 30% 

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10% 15% 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in open ended investment companies 
where the collective investment schemes constituted 
by the companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
and all investments in open-ended investment 
companies where the unit trust schemes and the 
collective investment schemes constituted by those 
companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

Any single insurance contract 25% 35% 

 
c) Reason for the decision 

The Fund plans to invest in secure income assets to provide the Fund with 
diversification and provide inflation linked cashflows.  Application of the 
increased limits will provide the Fund with greater flexibility and choice when 
selecting the investment products most appropriate for the Fund. 

 
d) Period for which the decision will apply 

The decision will apply until the next investment strategy in 3 years’ time, so 
the decision will apply until 31st March 2018. 

 
e) Date when decision will be reviewed, if applicable 

The decision will be reviewed at the time of the next investment strategy 
review or otherwise before 31st March 2018. 

 
f) Confirmation decision complies with the regulations 

The decision is in line with regulation 15 and schedule 1 of the LGPS 
Management and Investment of Funds regulations.  

 
5.6. In order to take this decision, the Sub-committee is required by the regulations to 

have taken proper advice.  The Investment Adviser’s advice on this decision is set 
out in Appendix 2.  

 
 
 

Page 65



6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

6.1. Not applicable. 
 
7. CONSULTATION 

7.1 Consultation has already taken place with the Fund’s investment adviser, however 
it is proposed that the draft agreed with the Sub-committee is shared with the 
employers of the Fund before it is finalised. 

 
8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. Not applicable. 
 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Not applicable. 
 
10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Not applicable. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT  

11.1. The risks of investing are set out in section 5.4 of the draft Statement of 
Investment Principles in Appendix 1 and in more detail in the Pension Fund Risk 
Register, which is reported elsewhere on this agenda. 

 
12. PROCUREMENT AND IT STRATEGY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. Not applicable. 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

    

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1: Draft Statement of Investment Principles 

Appendix 2: Deloitte advice on investment limits 

  

Page 66



APPENDIX 1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM PENSION FUND 

DRAFT STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES 

MARCH 2015 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1. Legal 

Regulation 12(1) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 requires administering authorities, after 
consultation with such persons as they consider appropriate, to prepare, 
maintain and publish a written statement of the principles governing their 
decisions about the investment of Pension Fund money.   
 

1.2. The Scheme 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (“the Scheme”) was established in 
accordance with statute to provide retirement benefits for all eligible employees. 
The Scheme is a contributory, defined benefit occupational pension scheme. It is 
funded by employee contributions and by variable employer contributions, which 
are set every three years, following an actuarial valuation of the assets and 
liabilities of the scheme. 

 
The benefits of the Scheme are defined by statute and they are inflation proofed 
in line with annual increases in the Consumer Price Index for September. The 
Scheme is operated by designated administering authorities, of which the 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham is one such authority. Each 
administering authority maintains a Pension Fund (“the Fund”) and invests 
monies not required immediately to meet benefits. 

 
1.3 Pensions Sub-committee 
 The Council has delegated the investment arrangements of the Fund to the 

Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee, which has sub-delegated them to the 
Pensions Sub-committee (the Sub-committee).  The Sub-committee meets at 
least 4 times a year.  Further information on the Sub-committee can be found in 
the Fund’s Governance Compliance Statement and the responsibilities are set 
out in 2.1 below. 

 
1.4 Advice 
 The Sub-committee obtains and considers advice from the Executive Director of 

Finance and Corporate Governance and Pension Fund Officers.  In addition, the 
Fund retains the services of an external investment adviser who attends all the 
Sub-committee’s meetings.  The Sub-committee also considers advice from the 
Fund Actuary and investment managers as necessary. 

 
1.5. Investment Managers 
 All investment management of the Fund’s assets is undertaken externally.  

Some elements are managed on a segregated basis in accordance with 
investment management agreements.  The remainder is invested in pooled fund 

Page 67



products managed by external investment managers according to the terms of 
the funds. 

 
2. Investment responsibilities 
 
2.1. Pensions Sub-committee 

The Pensions Sub-committee’s responsibilities are set out in their terms of 
reference as follows: 

To have responsibility for all aspects of the investment and other management 
activity of the Council’s Pension Fund, including, but not limited to, the following 
matters:  

• To agree the investment strategy and strategic asset allocation having regard to 
the advice of the fund managers and the Investment Adviser.  

• To monitor performance of the Pension Fund, individual fund managers, 
custodians, actuary and other external advisors to ensure that they remain 
suitable;  

• To determine the Fund management arrangements, including the appointment 
and termination of the appointment of the Fund Managers, Actuary, Custodians 
and Fund Advisers.  

• To agree the Statement of Investment Principles, the Funding Strategy 
Statement, the Business Plan for the Fund, the Governance Policy Statement, 
the Communications Policy Statement and the Governance Compliance 
Statement and to ensure compliance with these.  

• To approve the final statement of accounts of the Pension Fund and to approve 
the Annual Report. 

• To receive actuarial valuations of the Pension Fund regarding the level of 
employers’ contributions necessary to balance the Pension Fund. 

• To oversee and approve any changes to the administrative arrangements, 
material contracts and policies and procedures of the Council for the payment of 
pensions, and allowances to beneficiaries. 

• To make and review an admission policy relating to admission agreements 
generally with any admission body.  

• To ensure compliance with all relevant statutes, regulations and best practice 
with both the public and private sectors.  

• To review the arrangements and managers for the provision of Additional 
Voluntary Contributions for fund members. 

• To receive and consider the Auditor’s report on the governance of the Pension 
Fund. 

• To determine any other investment or pension fund policies that may be required 
from time to time so as to comply with Government regulations and to make any 
decisions in accordance with those policies. 
 
In cases where the Sub Committee decides, it may refer matters to the Audit, 
Pensions and Standards Committee for decision. 
 

2.2. Pension Fund Officers 
The Pension Fund Officers are responsible for advising the Sub-committee and 
for the following: 

Page 68



• Monitoring compliance with statutory requirements and the investment principles 
set out in the document and reporting any breaches to the Sub-committee. 

• Ensuring this document is regularly reviewed and updated in accordance with 
the LGPS regulations. 

• Investment accounting, preparing the annual accounts and report of the Fund 
and all day to day administration. 

• Ensuring proper resources are available to meet the Council’s responsibilities. 
 

2.3. Investment Managers 
The investment managers are responsible for: 

• The investment of the Fund’s assets in compliance with prevailing legislation and 
the investment management agreements or terms of the pooled fund as 
appropriate. 

• Tactical asset allocation and security selection within the parameters of the 
mandate set by the Fund or the terms of the pooled fund. 

• Preparation of quarterly reports including a review of performance and 
attendance at sub-committee meetings as requested. 

• Voting shares in accordance with the agreed policy. 

• Reporting any breaches of their guidelines and changes in key investment 
personnel. 

 
2.4. Custodian 

The custodian is responsible for: 

• Safe custody and settlement of all investment transactions, collection of income 
and administration of corporate actions for all segregated assets, independently 
from the investment managers. 

• Providing a performance measurement service of all the Fund’s investments 
including those in pooled funds, against agreed benchmarks and targets. 

• Providing valuations and accounting data summarising details of all investment 
transactions with the Fund. 

 
2.5. Investment Adviser 

The investment adviser is responsible for: 

• Advising the Sub-committee on the investment strategy of the Fund and the 
implementation of it. 

• Advising the Sub-committee on the appointment and termination of appointment 
of the investment managers and custodian. 

• Assisting the Sub-committee and Pension Fund officers in the on-going review of 
the investment managers and the suitability of the investment products used. 

• Providing advice, education and training on all investment related matters as 
required. 

 
2.6. Fund Actuary 

The Fund Actuary is responsible for: 

• Undertaking triennial valuations of the Fund’s assets and liabilities to measure 
funding level and set employer contribution rates. 

Page 69



• Providing regular updates between triennial valuations on the funding level of the 
Fund. 

• Providing advice on the admission and withdrawal of employers to the scheme, 
including external employers following externalisation of services. 

 
3. Pension Fund Liabilities 
 
3.1. Overview 

The Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund is broadly similar to other funds of 
comparable size in terms of its maturity. The Fund Actuary determined that the 
funding level was 83% at the 31st March 2013 valuation. It has agreed that the 
Council should make additional employer contributions over a period of 22 years 
to bring the funding level back to 100%. 
 
The Fund's primary long-term risk is that the Fund's assets will fall short of its 
liabilities. The Fund’s liabilities are sensitive to inflation via pension and pay 
increases, to interest rates and to mortality rates. The assets that would most 
closely match the liabilities are a combination of index-linked gilts as the 
liabilities move in accordance with changes in the relevant gilt yields. 
 
The investment strategy set for the Fund, as detailed later in this document, 
recognises the need to mitigate the risks set out above, but also balances this 
with the need to generate additional return to return the Fund to a 100% funding 
level. 
 

3.2. Scheme Benefits 
The LGPS is a defined benefit scheme, which provides benefits related to final 
salary for its members to 31 March 2014 and on a career average basis 
thereafter.  Each member’s pension is specified according to a formula based on 
salary and service and is unaffected by the investment return achieved by the 
fund.  Full details of the benefits are set out in the LGPS regulations. 

 
3.3. Funding the Benefits 

Active members are required to make pension contributions where the rate will, 
depend on the level of their salaries.  The Council and other employers 
participating in the Fund are responsible for meeting the remainder of the costs 
necessary to finance the benefits payable from the Fund by applying employer 
contribution rates, determined following the actuarial review and consultation 
with the Fund Actuary.  The employers therefore have a direct financial interest 
in the investment return achieved on the Fund’s assets to the extent that any 
funding shortfall is met from employers’ contributions.  The approach to funding 
is set out in the Funding Strategy Statement. 

 
3.4. Actuarial Valuation 

The Fund is valued every three years in accordance with the LGPS regulations 
and monitored each year by the officers and the Actuary.  The last valuation was 
as at 31 March 2013. 
 

  

Page 70



4. Investment Strategy 
 
4.1.Aims and Purpose of the Fund 

The aims of the Fund are to: 

• Enable employer contribution rates to be kept as stable as possible and at 
reasonable cost to taxpayers, scheduled and admitted bodies, 

• Manage employers’ liabilities effectively, 

• Ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall 
due, 

• Maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters. 
 
 The purpose of the Fund is to: 

• Receive monies in respect of contributions, transfer values and investment 
income, and 

• Pay out monies in respect of scheme benefits, transfer values, costs, charges 
and expenses, as defined in the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations. 

 
4.2. Investment Strategy 
 An investment strategy has been agreed having taken advice from the Fund’s 

investment adviser.  The strategy aims to balance the need to generate sufficient 
return to reach a fully funded position with the need to mitigate against the risks 
of inflation and interest rates.  The strategy is also designed to achieve 
diversification across different asset classes.  It has been decided that all 
investments will be managed by external fund managers. 

 
4.3. Strategic Benchmark 

The strategic benchmark of the Fund reflects the high level asset allocation and 
is shown in the table below: 
 

Asset Class Target 
Allocation 

Benchmark 

UK equities 22.5% FTSE All Share 

Overseas equities 22.5% MSCI AC World ex UK Growth  

Secure Income 20% 3 month LIBOR plus 4% 

Dynamic Asset Allocation 10% 3 month LIBOR plus 4% 

Absolute Return Bonds 10% 3 month LIBOR plus 2% 

Inflation Opportunities 10% UK RPI plus 2.5% 

Long Lease Property 5% FT All Gilt index plus 2% 

Total 100%  

 
Note: The Sub-committee is also considering an opportunistic element in the 
asset allocation.  Once a decision is made about this, the Statement of 
Investment Principles will be reviewed and updated as required. 

 
 
 

Page 71



4.4. Performance targets 
 Each of the fund managers and the investment products the Fund invests in has 

a set benchmark and target to achieve set out in the mandate. The detail of each 
of these is set out in section 5. 

 
4.5. Reporting 
 Quarterly reports on the Fund’s investments, including activity and performance 

are provided by the investment managers to officers and the investment adviser.  
The Fund’s investment performance is measured independently by the Fund’s 
custodian.  The investment adviser provides a quarterly report to the sub-
committee summarising investment performance and other key issues affecting 
the investments and the fund managers. 

 
4.6. Review 

The investment strategy is reviewed periodically; at least every three years 
following the actuarial valuation of the Fund. 

 
 
5. Investments 
 
5.1. The powers and duties of the Council to invest Fund monies are set out in the 

LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.  For all 
investments, the Administering Authority is required to take account of the need 
for diversification, and of advice from persons properly qualified by their ability 
and practical experience of financial matters to provide that advice. 

 

5.2. The regulations state that the Council, as Administering Authority must not invest 
any monies not immediately required for the payment of benefits and pensions 
with its own cash balances.  The cash the Fund retains for the payment of 
benefits is therefore held in a separate bank account, in accordance with the 
regulations. 

 
5.3. Statutory Investment Limits  
 The regulations set out limits on different types of investment – these are set out 

in the table below.  The percentages in the second column are the maximum 
limits which apply to all Funds.  The regulations include a provision for Funds to 
be able to elect to increase certain limits within parameters set out in a schedule 
to the regulations. The sub-committee has elected to apply certain of these 
increased limits from 1st April 2015 and plans to review this election by 31st 
March 2018, as part of the next investment strategy review.  These are shown in 
the final column of the table. 

 

Investment Type Regulatory 
limits 

Election 
for 

increased 
limits 

Any single sub-underwriting contract 1% - 

All contributions to any single partnership 2% 5% 

Page 72



All contributions to partnerships 5% 30% 

All loans and any deposits with local authorities or 
their preceptors 

10% - 

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10% 15% 

Any single holding unless guaranteed by Her 
Majesty’s Government 

10% - 

All deposits with any single bank, institution or 
person, (other than the National Savings Bank) 

10% - 

All sub-underwriting contracts 15% - 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in open ended investment companies 
where the collective investment schemes constituted 
by the companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in units or other shares of the 
investments subject to the trusts of unit trust schemes 
and all investments in open-ended investment 
companies where the unit trust schemes and the 
collective investment schemes constituted by those 
companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

Any single insurance contract 25% 35% 

All securities transferred (or agreed to be transferred) 
by the authority under stock lending arrangements 

25% - 

 
5.4. Risks 

The Fund recognises there are a number of risks involved in the investment of 
the assets of the Fund, including: 

• The risk of failing to meet the objectives – the Sub-committee regularly takes 
advice and monitors the investments and funding level to mitigate this risk.     

• Funding and Asset/Liability mismatch risk – this is addressed through the 
regular actuarial and investment reviews.  The majority of the Fund’s liabilities 
are linked to inflation.  

• Underperformance risk – this is addressed through monitoring closely the 
performance of the investment managers and taking necessary action when this 
is not satisfactory.  

• Country risk – the risk of an adverse influence on investment values from 
political intervention is reduced by diversification of the assets across many 
countries. 

• Currency risk – the risk of a loss in the value of the Fund’s assets through 
holding assets in a currency other than sterling.  Where feasible and practical, 
the Sub-committee will look to manage the overall currency exposure of the 
underlying assets. 

• Risk of inadequate diversification or inappropriate investment – this is 
addressed by investing in a diversified portfolio of assets thereby avoiding 
concentration of assets in one particular stock, sector or geographical area. The 
investment management agreements and pooled fund terms where appropriate, 

Page 73



contain restrictions to limit the risks from each individual investment and prevent 
unsuitable investment activity.  

• Organisational risk – this is addressed through regular monitoring of the 
investment managers, investment adviser and custodian. 

• Liquidity risk – the risk that the Fund is unable to meet cashflows out of the 
Fund as and when required.  To manage this risk, the majority of the Fund’s 
investments are invested in funds or assets which in a normal market 
environment are realisable at short notice. 

 
The Sub-committee maintain and regularly review a risk register including the 
above investment risks. 

 
5.5 Rate of return 

The investment strategy set by the Fund is expected to generate an annual 
investment return of ?????%. 
 

5.6. Realisation of investments 
The majority of the Fund’s investments are readily marketable and may be easily 
realised if required.  Some of the Fund’s investments, such as private equity and 
limited liability partnerships are less liquid, but they make up a relatively small 
proportion of the total Fund. 
 
The Sub-committee monitors cashflow at its quarterly meetings to ensure there 
is sufficient cash to meet the Fund’s obligations as they fall due. 
 

5.7. Stock Lending 
The Fund does not engage directly in the lending of stocks or other securities. 
 

5.8. Investment Managers 
The investment of the Fund’s investments is undertaken externally.  Some 
elements are managed on a segregated basis by investment managers 
appointed by the Sub-committee. The remainder is invested in pooled fund 
products managed by external investment managers according to the terms of 
the selected funds.  The current investment management arrangements for the 
Fund are: 

Page 74



 
 

Asset Class Investment Manager/ investment product Segregated / 
Pooled 

Target 
Allocation 

Benchmark and target 

UK equities Majedie Asset Management Segregated 22.5% 
FTSE All Share plus 2% per 
annum 

Overseas equities MFS International  Segregated 22.5% 
MSCI AC World ex UK 
Growth plus 2% per annum 

Secure Income 

Partners Group Multi Asset Credit Fund 
2014 

Pooled 

20% 

3 month LIBOR plus 4% 

Oak Hill Advisers Diversified Credit 
Strategy 

Pooled 3 month LIBOR plus 4% 

To be determined   

Dynamic Asset 
Allocation 

Ruffer LLP Segregated 10% 3 month LIBOR plus 4% 

Absolute Return 
Bonds 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management 
Strategic Absolute Return Fund I 

Pooled 10% 3 month LIBOR plus 2% 

Inflation 
Opportunities 

M & G Inflation Opportunities Fund V Pooled 10% UK RPI plus 2.5% 

Long Lease 
Property 

To be determined  5% FT All Gilt index plus 2% 

Current residual investments outside target allocation 

Matching Fund 
Legal & General Investment 
Management LDI Bespoke Fund 

Pooled - 
2 x Bespoke liability 
benchmark minus 3 month 
LIBOR 

Private Equity 
Invesco Fund IV & Invesco Fund V Pooled - - 

Unicapital Fund IV & Unicapital Fund V Pooled - - 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



6. SOCIAL, ENVIRONMENTAL AND ETHICAL POLICY 
 

6.1 The Fund recognises that the neglect of corporate governance and 
corporate social responsibility may lead to poor or reduced shareholder 
returns.  The Sub-committee has considered how the Fund may best 
implement a corporate social responsibility policy, given the current 
resources available to the Fund.  Accordingly, the Sub-committee has 
delegated social, environmental and ethical policy to the investment 
managers. The Sub-committee believes this is the most efficient approach 
whilst ensuring the implementation of policy by each manager is 
consistent with current best practice and there is appropriate disclosure 
and reporting of actions taken. To that extent, the Sub-committee 
maintains a policy of non-interference with the day-to-day decision making 
of the investment managers.   

   
7. VOTING RIGHTS 
 

7.1 The Sub-committee has delegated the Fund’s voting rights to the 
investment managers, who are required, where practical, to make 
considered use of voting in the interests of the Fund.  The Sub-committee 
expects the investment managers to vote in the best interests of the Fund. 

 

7.2 The investment managers are required to regularly report voting actions 
and highlight where they do not vote in accordance with their stated 
policy. 

 
 
8. Compliance with Myners’ Principles of Investment Decision Making 
 
8.1. The LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 

require Funds to state the extent to which they comply with the six 
principles of investment practice set out in the CIPFA publication 
“Investment Decision Making and Disclosure in the Local Government 
Pension Scheme – A Guide to the Application of the Myners’ Principles” 
and give reasons for not complying where they do not do so. 

 

8.2. The principles and Hammersmith and Fulham Fund’s position on 
compliance are set out in the table below:  

 

 

 

  

Page 76



Compliance Requirement Compliance Notes 

Principle 1: Effective Decision Making 

Administering Authorities should 
ensure that decisions are taken by 
persons or organisations with the 
skills, knowledge, advice and 
resources necessary to make them 
effectively and monitor their 
implementation. 

 

 

 

The persons and organisations 
involved responsible for decisions 
should have sufficient expertise to be 
able to evaluate and challenge the 
advice they receive and manage 
conflicts of interest. 

 

Fully 
compliant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fully 
compliant 

Decisions are made by the 
Pensions Sub-committee, with 
advice from the Fund’s investment 
adviser, Fund Actuary and officers. 
The Sub-committee members 
receive quarterly reports on 
investment performance from the 
Investment Adviser.  

 

The Pensions Sub-committee 
members collectively have the 
necessary experience and ability to 
challenge the advice they receive.  
The declaration of conflicts of 
interest is the first item on the 
agenda at each Pensions Sub-
committee meeting. 

Principle 2: Clear Objectives 

An overall investment objective(s) 
should be set for the fund that takes 
account of the scheme’s liabilities, the 
potential impact on local tax payers, 
the strength of the covenant for non-
local authority employers, and the 
attitude to risk of both the 
administering authority and scheme 
employers, and these should be 
clearly communicated to advisers and 
investment managers. 

 

Fully 
compliant 

The objectives are set out clearly 
and take into account the 
requirement to maintain an 
employer contribution rate as 
constant as possible over the long 
term.  These are communicated to 
advisers and investment 
managers. 

  

Principle 3: Risk and Liabilities 

In setting and reviewing their 
investment strategy, administering 
authorities should take account of the 
form and structure of liabilities. These 
include the implications for local tax 
payers, the strength of the covenant 
for participating employers, the risk of 
their default and longevity risk 

Fully 
compliant 

The structure of the liabilities has 
been considered in setting an 
investment strategy which 
recognises the need to mitigate 
against the risk of inflation and 
interest rates, which drive the 
liabilities, as well generate 
sufficient investment return to 
assist in achieving full funding.  

 

  

Page 77



Compliance Requirement Compliance Notes 

Principle 4: Performance Assessment 

Arrangements should be in place for 
the formal measurement of 
performance of the investments, 
investment managers and advisers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administering authorities should also 
periodically make a formal 
assessment of their own effectiveness 
as a decision-making body and report 
on this to the scheme members. 

 

Fully 
compliant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Partially 
compliant 

The Custodian independently 
measures the performance of the 
investment managers’ portfolios 
and a summary of investment 
performance is provided to the sub-
committee by the investment 
adviser quarterly.  

 

The investment adviser and Fund 
Actuary are appointed on fixed 
term contracts following tender 
processes and the quality of 
service is assessed through 
contract monitoring. 

 

The Sub-committee does not 
periodically make a formal 
assessment of it’s own 
effectiveness as a decision making 
body.  However the performance of 
the Fund is reported in the Annual 
Report published on the website. 

 

Principle 5: Responsible Ownership 

Administering authorities should: 
recognise and ensure their partners in 
the investment chain adopt, the FRC’s 
UK Stewardship Code  

 

Include a statement of their policy on  
responsible ownership in their 
statement of investment principles 

 

Report periodically to scheme 
members on the discharge of these 
responsibilities 

 

 

Fully 
compliant 

 

 

 

Fully 
compliant 

 

 

Fully 
compliant 

The Fund’s investment managers 
have adopted the FRC’s UK 
Stewardship Code. 

 

 

See section 6 of this document 

 

 

 

As this Statement of Investment 
Principles forms part of the Annual 
Report and Accounts, the 
statements above comply with this 
requirement. 

 

  

Page 78



Compliance Requirement Compliance Notes 

Principle 6: Transparency and Reporting 

Administering authorities should:  

act in a transparent manner, 
communicating with stakeholders on 
issues relating to their management of 
investments, its governance and risks, 
including performance against stated 
objectives. 

 

Provide regular communication to 
scheme members in the form they 
consider most appropriate. 

 

Fully 
compliant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fully 
compliant 

The information is provided in the 
Pension Fund Annual Report and 
Accounts which is available 
through the website. 

 

 

 

 

The published annual report and 
accounts are considered sufficient, 
since the benefits of the scheme 
are defined and guaranteed by 
statute. 

 

 

 

Page 79



Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited 1 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Proposed changes to the Statement of Investment Principles 

Introduction 

This note has been prepared for the Investment Sub-committee of the Audit and Pension Standards Committee of 

the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham with regard to the proposed changes to the Statement of 

Investment Principles for the pension fund (“the Fund”). 

The current Statement of Investment Principles sets out a series of constraints and limits with regard to a range of 

investments in accordance with Schedule 1 of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (“the Regulations”).  The current limits applied by the Fund need to be 

reviewed and amended to reflect some of the changes being considered to the Fund’s investment strategy.  The 

advice given in this note is purely from an investment perspective. 

Proposed changes 

The Regulations set out for a range of different investments limits on the amount that may be invested at the time 

the investment is made.  However, the Regulations also include provision for these limits to be increased. 

With the proposed introduction of some of the new mandates – in particular the allocation to the Multi Asset Credit 

Fund managed by Partners Group and the potential investment in infrastructure – the limits need to be reviewed 

and, potentially revised given that exposure to these assets is often achieved through limited partnership type 

structures.  The table below sets out the proposed changes. 

Investment Type Regulatory 

limits 

Election for 

increased limits 

Any single sub-underwriting contract 1%  

All contributions to any single partnership 2% 5% 

All contributions to partnerships 5% 30% 

All loans and any deposits with local authorities or their preceptors 10%  

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10% 15% 

Any single holding unless guaranteed by Her Majesty’s Government 10%  

All deposits with any single bank, institution or person, (other than the 

National Savings Bank) 
10%  

All sub-underwriting contracts 15%  

All investments in units or other shares of the investments subject to the 

trusts of unit trust schemes managed by any one body 
25% 35% 

All investments in open ended investment companies where the collective 

investment schemes constituted by the companies are managed by any 

one body 

25% 35% 

All investments in units or other shares of the investments subject to the 

trusts of unit trust schemes and all investments in open-ended investment 

companies where the unit trust schemes and the collective investment 

schemes constituted by those companies are managed by any one body 

25% 35% 

Any single insurance contract 25% 35% 

All securities transferred (or agreed to be transferred) by the authority 

under stock lending arrangements 
25%  

 

Page 80



London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Proposed changes to the Statement of Investment Principles 

 

 

 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited 

 

2 

 

  

 

Our advice  

Clearly any decision to invest in any particular asset class and associated structure needs to be considered in the 

context of the investment opportunity, the efficiency of implementation, liquidity and diversification benefits.  

Our advice is provided on the assumption that the investments will be into products or strategies operated by well-

resourced investment management organisations that are subject to regulation and regular review by a range of 

market participants, where the underlying investments are diversified by geography and sector, as the investment 

adviser to the Fund.  On this basis we are comfortable with the proposed changes to the limits set out in the table 

from an investment perspective. 

While the limits apply to the proportion of the Fund at the time the investment is made, we would suggest that 

careful consideration is given at the time of investment to how the allocation could change over time and whether 

the limits could be breached as a result of market movements.  We would advocate that the actual position relative 

to the limits is reviewed and monitored on a regular basis by the Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 81



 

 

 

Other than as stated below, this document is confidential and prepared solely for your information and that of 

other beneficiaries of our advice listed in our engagement letter. Therefore you should not refer to or use our 

name or this document for any other purpose, disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other 

document, or make them available or communicate them to any other party. If this document contains details of 

an arrangement that could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality apply 

to the details of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax authorities). In any event, 

no other party is entitled to rely on our document for any purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to 

any other party who is shown or gains access to this document. 

 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited. Registered office: Hill House, 1 Little New Street, London EC4A 3TR, 

United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 3981512.  

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited is a subsidiary of Deloitte LLP, the United Kingdom member firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company limited by guarantee, whose member firms are 

legally separate and independent entities. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the 

legal structure of DTTL and its member firms. 

 

Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct 

Authority. 

  

    

· Past performance is not necessarily a guide to the future. 

· The value of investments may fall as well as rise and you may not get back the amount invested. 

· Income from investments may fluctuate in value. 

· Where charges are deducted from capital, the capital may be eroded or future growth constrained. 

· Investors should be aware that changing investment strategy will incur some costs. 

· Any recommendation in this report should not be viewed as a guarantee regarding the future performance of 

the products or strategy.  

Our advice will be specific to your current circumstances and intentions and therefore will not be suitable for use at 

any other time, in different circumstances or to achieve other aims or for the use of others.  Accordingly, you should 

only use the advice for the intended purpose. 

 

Risk Warnings 

Page 82



Agenda Item 9

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 10

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a

g
e
 9

0

B
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a

rt 1
 o

f S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2

A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t A

c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



Page 130

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 11

Page 133

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 12

Page 138

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Action Tracker

	4 Pension Fund Quarterly Update Pack
	ITEM 1.1 Appendix 2 Deloitte Quarterly investment report
	ITEM 1.2 Appendix 3 Barnett Waddingham Quarterly Funding Update Dec 2014
	ITEM 1.3 Appendix 4 Cashflow forecast
	ITEM 1.4 Appendix 5 Risk Register
	ITEM 1.5 Appendix 6 Voting Summary

	5 Pension Fund Actuarial Service
	ITEM 2.1 Appendix 1 Barnett Waddingham Funding Update

	6 Statement of Investment Principles
	ITEM 3.1 Appendix 2 Deloitte advice re increased limits

	9 Minutes
	10 Standard Life Long Lease Property Fund
	ITEM 4.1 Appendix 1 Standard Life Long Lease Property Fund
	ITEM 4.2 Appendix 2 Standard Life trigger points

	11 Investment Strategy Update
	12 Infrastructure Investments
	ITEM 6.1 Appendix 1 Deloitte infrastructure briefing


